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ROGER I A N  DAYES PLAINTIFF 

A.  CHONG 1ST DEFENDANT 

ACHONG LIMITED 2ND DEFENDANT 

BASIL JAMES 3RD DEFENDANT 

B . J .  CONSTRUCTION AND 4TH DEFENDANT 

BASIL JAMES CONSTRUCTION 5TH DEFENDANT 
AND PLUMBING SERVICES 
LIMITED 

NATIONAL WATER COMMISSION 6TH DEFENDANT 

The f o u r t h  d e f e n d a n t  i s  s t r u c k  from t h e  r e c o r d s .  

D r .  R .  B .  Manderson-Jones f o r  t h e  p l a i n t i f f .  

Denn i s  Gof fe  Q.C. and  Mine t t e -Pa lmer  i n s t r u c t e d  by Myers F l e t c h e r  
& Gordon f o r  t h e  f i r s t  and  s e c o n d  d e f e n d a n t s .  

G a r t h  L y t t l e  i n s t r u c t e d  by G a r t h  L y t t l e  & Co. f o r  t h e  t h i r d ,  
f o u r t h  & f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t s .  

Andre E a r l e  and  J e f f e r y  Da ley  i n s t r u c t e d  by R a t t r a y  P a t t e r s o n  f o r  
t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t s .  

Heard: 2 5 t h  & 2 6 t h  November 1998,  l l t h ,  1 2 t h ,  1 3 t h ,  1 4 t h ,  
2 1 s t ,  22nd J a n u a r y  1999 and  8 t h  October, 1999 

PITTER J. 

On t h e  e a r l y  morning  o f  t h e  1 4 t h  J a n u a r y ,  1 9 9 5 ,  a t  

a p p r o x i m a t e l y  1:00 o ' c l o c k ,  Roger I a n  Dayes t h e  p l a i n t i f f  was 

d r i v i n g  h i s  S u z u k i  V i t a r a  motor  v e h i c l e  a l o n g  Musgrave Avenue i n  t h e  

p a r i s h  o f  S t .  Andrew when h e  was i n v o l v e d  i n  a n  a c c i d e n t  which  

r e s u l t e d  i n  s e r i o u s  b o d i l y  i n j u r y  t o  him and  e x t e n s i v e  damage t o  

t h e  v e h i c l e .  I t  i s  t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  c a s e  t h a t  a t  t h e  i n t e r s e c t i o n  

o f  Musgrave Avenue and  Comlin Bank Road t h e r e  was a  l a r g e  h o l e  which  



had been dug i n  t h e  roadway w i t h  a h i g h  mound o f  e a r t h  a l o n g s i d e  

it and a t r e n c h  c u t  a c r o s s  t h e  road .  T h a t  t h e  s a i d ' h o l e  and mound 

of  e a r t h  c o n s t i t u t e d  a major  o b s t r u c t i o n  o f  p a s s a g e  a l o n g  t h e  

roadway, occupying most  o f  t h e  s u r f a c e  o f  t h e  r o a d  and b l o c k i n g  

a l l  o f  t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  p a t h  on t h e  l e f t  hand s i d e  o f  t h e  r o a d ,  c a u s i n g  

/-...,, 
t h e  . p l a i n t i f f  t o  swerve and a v o i d  e n t e r i n g  t h e  h o l e  o r  h i t t i n g  t h e  

Ll mound o f  e a r t h  and f o r c i n g  t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  car t o  h i t  t h e  t r e n c h  

r u n n i n g  a c r o s s  t h e  r o a d  and from t h e r e  t o  c o l l i d e  i n t o  a t e l e p h o n e  
. . 

p o l e  on t h e  bank o f  t h e  r i g h t  hand s i d e  o f  t h e  road .  I n  swerving 

t o  a v o i d  t h e  mound o f  e a r t h  and h i t t i n g  t h e  open t r e n c h ,  h e  was 

thrown from h i s  seat  and h e  l o s t  c o n t r o l  o f  t h e  v e h i c l e .  He s a y s  

t h a t  t h e r e  were no l i g h t s  i n  t h e  area e x c e p t  t h o s e  o f  h i s  car and 

a t  t h e  t i m e  h e  w a s  t r a v e l l i n g  a t  approx imate ly  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour .  

The p l a i n t i f f ' s  c l a i m  i s  t h a t  t h e  f i r s t  d e f e n d a n t  a t  a l l  

m a t e r i a l  t i m e s  was a n  o f f i c e r  and s e r v a n t  o r  a g e n t  o f  t h e  second 

d e f e n d a n t  which was a t  t h e  t i m e  a company o f  c o n s u l t i n g  e n g i n e e r s .  

The t h i r d  d e f e n d a n t  a t  a l l  m a t e r i a l  t i m e s  w a s  t h e  s e r v a n t  o r  a g e n t  

o f  t h e  f i r s t  and o r  second d e f e n d a n t  and o r  t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t  

and o r  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t .  

A l t e r n a t i v e l y ,  a t  a l l  material  t i m e s  t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t  was t h e  

s e r v a n t  and a g e n t  o f  t h e  f i r s t  and o r  second d e f e n d a n t  and o r  t h e  

t h i r d  d e f e n d a n t ,  and o r  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t .  C 



The s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  i s  a  S t a t u t o r y  Company. 

I t  i s  t h e  f u r t h e r  c l a i m  o f  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  t h a t  t h e  s a i d  

h o l e ,  mound o f  e a r t h  and t r e n c h  were p a r t  o f  p i p e - l a y i n g  and r o a d  

works a c t i v i t y  b e i n g  c a r r i e d  o u t  by and under  t h e  s u p e r v i s i o n  o f  

t h e  f i r s t ,  s econd ,  t h i r d ,  f i f t h  and s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t s  and o r  t h e i r  

s e r v a n t s  o r  a g e n t s  t h e  f i r s t ,  t h i r d ,  and f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t s  ( a s  t h e  

c a s e  may b e )  who t h e y  had employed t o  a s s i s t  i n  p r o v i d i n g  manual 

l a b o u r  f o r  c a r r y i n g  o u t  t h e  works and l a y i n g  t h e  p i p e s  o r  who d i d  

s o  under  t h e i r  s u p e r v i s i o n .  

The f i r s t  and second d e f e n d a n t s  deny t h e  c l a i m  and deny 

t h a t  t h e  t h i r d  and f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t s  were t h e i r  s e r v a n t s  a n d / o r  

a g e n t s .  They a l s o  deny t h a t  t h e  p i p e - l a y i n g  and r o a d  works were 

b e i n g  c a r r i e d  o u t  by them o r  under  t h e i r  s u p e r v i s i o n  and deny t h a t  

t h e y  were r e s p o n s i b l e  f o r  t h e  d i g g i n g  o f  t h e  h o l e ,  t h e  mound o f  

e a r t h  and t h e  t r e n c h .  I t  i s  t h e  c a s e  of  t h e  f i r s t  and second 

d e f e n d a n t s  t h a t  a t  a l l  m a t e r i a l  t i m e s  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  had 

been engaged a s  a c o n s u l t a n t  f o r  t h e  d e s i g n  and i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  

o f  t h e  sewerage  sys tem i n  a  hous ing  development  a t  Kusgrave Avenue 

and Comlin Road and t h a t  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  a p p l i e d  t o  t h e  s i x t h  

d e f e n d a n t  f o r  a  sewer  c o n n e c t i o n  t o  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t ' s  sewer 

main f o r  t h e  s a i d  hous ing  development  and which was approved by 

t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  who a g r e e d  t o  u n d e r t a k e  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  

d e s i g n i n g  and c o n s t r u c t i n g  t h e  sewer t r e n c h  i n  q u e s t i o n .  

They deny t h e  c l a i m  f o r  n e g l i g e n c e  and s a y  t h a t  a t  a l l  m a t e r i a l  

t i m e s  t h e  work was b e i n g  c a r r i e d  o u t  by t h e  t h i r d  and o r  f i f t h  



d e f e n d a n t s  who were themse lves  independen t  c o n t r a & t o r s  s u b j e c t  t o  

and under  t h e  s u p e r v i s o r  o f  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t .  They a l s o  f i l e d  

n o t i c e  o f  indemni ty  a g a i n s t  t h e  o t h e r  d e f e n d a n t s .  

The t h i r d ,  & f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t s  a l s o  deny t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  

c l a i m .  They deny t h a t  t h e r e  was any mound or h o l e  or t r e n c h  l e f t  

i n  t h e  r o a d  o r  a t  a i l ;  t h a t  e a r l i e r  i n  t h e  d a y  a  t r e n c h  was dug 

b u t  it was l a t e r  b a c k f i l l e d  and l e v e l l e d  o f f  l e a v i n g  no  o b s t r u c t i o n  

i n  t h e  r o a d .  They s a y  t h a t  e x c a v a t i o n  work was done u n d e r  t h e  

s u p e r v i s i o n  o f  t h e  f i r s t ,  and second d e f e n d a n t s .  I t  i s  t h e i r  

c a s e  t h a t  t h e  i n j u r i e s  o c c a s i o n e d  by t h e  a c c i d e n t ,  l o s s  and damage 

s u f f e r e d  by t h e  p l a i n t i f f w e r e  s o l e l y  caused  o r  c o n t r i b u t e d  t o  by 

t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  own n e g l i g e n c e .  

The s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t d e n i e s  t h a t  anv o f  t h e  t h i r d .  o r  

f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t s  w e r e  i t s  s e r v a n t s  o r  a g e n t .  I t  a l s o  d e n i e s  t h a t  

t h e  p i p e  - l a y i n g  works and r o a d s  and works a c t i v i t i e s  w e r e  c a r r i e d  

o u t  under  t h e i r  s u p e r v i s i o n ;  o r  done by any o f  i t s  s e r v a n t s  o r  a g e n t s  

b u t  t h a t  t h i s  was c a r r i e d  o u t  by t h e  f i r s t ,  second and f i f t h  

d e f e n d a n t s .  The s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  i n  i t s  d e f e n c e ,  c l a i m s  t h a t  t h e  

f i r s t  d e f e n d a n t ,  a c t i n g  a s  t h e  s e r v a n t  a n d / o r  a g e n t  o f  t h e  second 

d e f e n d a n t ,  c o n t r a c t e d  t h e  t h i r d  d e f e n d a n t  t o  c o n n e c t  a  sewer 

main t o  t h e  s a i d  l o c a t i o n  and t h a t  i t s  a c t u a l  r o l e  a s  r e g a r d s  t h e  

s a i d  c o n n e c t i o n  was l i m i t e d  t o  t h e  examina t ion  o f  t h e  l a y i n g  o f  

C: t h e  sewer mains and t h e  b u i l d i n g  o f  t h e  manholes t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  

such  works w e r e  u n d e r t a k e n  t o  i t s  s p e c i f i c a t i o n s .  



I t  i s  t h e  f u r t h e r  d e f e n c e  o f  t h e  6 t h  d e f e n d a n t  t h a t  t h e  l o s s  and 

damage s u f f e r e d  by t h e  p l a i n t i f f  was caused  o r  c o n t r i b u t e d  t o  by 

t h e  n e g l i g e n c e  o f  the p l a i n t i f f ,  t h e  f i s t ,  second and t h i r d  d e f e n d a n t s  

o r  any one o r  more o f  them. The s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  h a s  a l s o  f i l e d  

n o t i c e  t o  t h e  co-defendan t s  c l a i m i n y  indemni ty .  

The Evidence  

The p l a i n t i f f ' s  e v i d e n c e  i s  t h a t  h e  owns two b u s i n e s s e s  

i n  a u t o  p a r t s .  One i s  l o c a t e d  i n  F l o r i d a  U .  S  . A .  and t h e  o t h e r ,  
. - 

Daytona S a l e s  L imi ted  a t  7D Marescaux Road, Kings ton  and 

t h a t  he  i s  t h e  m a j o r i t y  s h a r e h o l d e r  

t o  b o t h  b u s i n e s s e s .  H e  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  on t h e  1 4 t h  J a n u a r y ,  1 9 9 5  

a t  a b o u t  1:00 a.m. he  was d r i v i n g  h i s  Suzuki  V i t a r a  motor v e h i c l e  

a long  Musgrave Avenue i n  t h e  p a r i s h  o f  S t .  Andrew when he  suddenly  

(I. saw a  mound of  e a r t h  i n  t h e  midd le  o f  t h e  r o a d ,  t h a t  h e  braked and 

swerved l e f t ,  h i t  a n  open t r e n c h ,  was thrown o u t  o f  h i s  s e a t ,  h e  

l o s t  c o n t r o l  of  t h e  c a r  which went  t o  t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  o f  t h e  road 

a.nd ended up i n  a  l i g h t p o l e  some 100 f e e t  from t h e  mound. A s  a  

r e s u l t  he  s u f f e r e d  s e r i o u s  b o d i l y  i n j u r y  r e q u i r i n g  h o s p i t a l i s a t i o n ,  

bo th  h e r e  and i n  t h e  U.S.A. The c a r  was a  t o t a l  w r i t e  o f f .  H e  s a i d  

he was t r a v e l l i n g  a t  30 m i l e s  p e r  hou r ,  t h a t  t h e r e  was no l i g h t i n g  

on t h e  roadway e x c e p t  f o r  t h e  l i g h t s  coming from h i s  motor c a r .  

(-::i 
There were no warning s i g n s .  The open t r e n c h  which r a n  i n t o  t h e  

mound a r e a  i s  an  unpaved a r e a  below t h e  l e v e l  o f  t h e  r o a d .  



6 

He was t aken  t o  t h e  Un ive r s i t y  of t ~ e  West I n d i e s  

Hosp i t a l  where he s p e n t  a  month i n  t h e  Tony Thwaites Wing o f  t h e  

h o s p i t a l .  A s  a  r e s u l t  of  t h e  a c c i d e n t ,  he  s u f f e r e d  a b r a s i o n s ,  

t o  t h e  r i g h t  f o o t ,  c u t s  t o  t h e  f a c e  and s c a l p  and a  broken h i p .  

The femur was d r iven  through t h e  s o c k e t  of  t h e  h i p .  He a l s o  

s u f f e r e d  f r a c t u r e d  r i b s  and t h e  i n j u r i e s  were a s s o c i a t e d  wi th  

s eve re  pa ins .  He underwent su rge ry  t o  r e i n f o r c e  t h e  broken socke t ,  

which was pinned and h i s  r i g h t  l e g  p laced  i n  t r a c t i o n .  He l e f t  

t h e  h o s p i t a l  and went by a i r  ambulance t o  S t .  P e t e r s b u r g ,  F l o r i d a  

where he had f u r t h e r  t r ea tmen t .  He a g a i n  underwent su rge ry  and 

r ece ived  an a r t i f i c a l  replacement  h i p  - t h e r e  he  s p e n t  a  f u r t h e r  

n ine  days i n  h o s p i t a l  and r ehabs  c e n t r e s .  He s t a y e d  a t  home 

r ecupe ra t ing  approximately  t h r e e  - f o u r  months. I n  a l l  he  s p e n t  

about  s i x  months between h o s p i t a l s  and home. 

He i n c u r r e d  medical  expenses .  Most of  it was met i n  

t h e  U.S.A. by Cigma Insurance  Company amounting t o  U.S$23974. 

Cost  of psychotheraphy i n  Jamaica $21,000 and i n  t h e  US.A. over  $500 

The p l a i n t i f f ' s  medical  p rognos i s  i s  t h a t  he w i l l  r e q u i r e  ano the r  

h i p  replacement soon and he a n t i c i p a t e s  another  t h r e e  rep lacements  

dur ing  h i s  l i f e t i m e  c o s t i n g  an average of  U.S.$30,000 each.  One 

replacement l a s t s  t e n  - f i f t e e n  y e a r s .  Medical expenses  were 

supported by documentary ev idence  i n c l u d i n g  b i l l s  and r e c e i p t s .  

The c o s t  of a i r  ambulance s e r v i c e  amounted t o  U.S.$5,500 which 

was pa id  by t h e  i n s u r e r s .  Cigma Heal th  Insurance  pa id  o u t  a  t o t a l  

of U.S. $2.31400. 



7  
The V i t a r a  mo to r  v e h i c l e  was damaged and h a d  t o  b e  

w r i t t e n  o f f  i n  t h e  sum o f  $475,000.00,  i t s  p r e - a c c i d e n t  v a l u e  b e i n g  
I 

$700,000.00. A car w a s  r e n t e d  i n  i t s  p l a c e  c o s t i n g  $23,114.36 which I 

was u s e d  by h i s  w i f e  t o  v i s i t  him. T a x i  s e r v i c e  amounted t o  $10,000.  
i 

I t  i s  h i s  e v i d e n c e  t h a t  h i s  f u t u r e  e a r n i n g s  would b e  I 
s e r i o u s l y  a f f e c t e d .  H e  i s  u n a b l e  t o  a t t e n d  a u t o  t r a d e  shows f o r  I 

! 
any l e n g t h  o f  t i m e  b e c a u s e  o f  t h e  p a i n s  e x p e r i e n c e d .  These  shows i 
a l l o w  him t o  b e  k e p t  a b r e a s t  o f  c u r r e n t  e v e n t s  i n  t h e  moto r  t r a d e .  , I 

H e  i s  a l s o  p r e v e n t e d  f rom g a l v a n i s h i n g  c u s t o m e r  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  

s o c i a l  r e l a t i o n s h i p  as h i s  work ing  d a y ~ i s  u s u a l l y  t e r m i n a t e d  b e c a u s e  i 
o f  p a i n .  H e  c u r r e n t l y  d o e s  a f u l l  d a y s  work i n  h i s  b u s i n e s s  b u t  1 
w i t h  much d i s c o m f o r t  b e c a u s e  it i s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  s i t  f o r  p r o l o n g e d  i 

I 

h o u r s  a s  h i s  b u s i n e s s  i s  a warehouse  and  it i s  n e c e s s a r y  t o  wa lk  ~ 
t h e  p r e m i s e s .  H e  t h i n k s  h e  h a s  a s u b s t a n t i a l  work ing  l i f e  ahead  I 

o f  him b e  b e i n g  5 3  y e a r s  o f  a g e .  H e  estimates h i s  l o s s  o f  f u t u r e  
, 

. e a r n i n g s  t o  b e  $1.2M a t  a r a t e  o f  $100,000 p e r  annum o v e r  a p e r i o d  

o f  t w e l v e  y e a r s .  i 
H e  f u r t h e r  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e  i n j u r i e s  c a u s e d  p a i n s  I 

which preoccupy h i s  e x i s t e n c e .  Not  a  day  g o e s  b y r a n d  r e c e n t l y ,  I 

a n  h o u r r t h a t  h e  d o e s  n o t  feel  p a i n s .  Such i s  t h e  p a i n  t h a t  it 

s a p s  h i s  e n e r g y  and  i n t e r e s t  i n  l i f e .  H e  f e e l s  p a i n s  m o s t l y  i n  

h i s  h i p ,  l e y ,  c a l f  and  bo t tom.  When h e  moves t h e  p a i n s  are 

e x c r u c i a t i n g r a n d  i n t e r m i t t e n t  when h e  s i t s  o n  h a r d  s u r f a c e s ,  it 

i s  p a i n f u l  d u e  t o  l a c k  o f  musc le  f a t  on h i s  bo t tom b e c a u s e  o f  

a t r o p h y  a s s o c i a t e d .  w i t h  t h e  a c c i d e n t .  I t  i s  d i f f i c u l t  and 



i 
uncomfor tab le  t o  s i t  i n  c a r s  w i t h  b u c k e t  s e a t s  and a l s o  i n  a i r  p l a n e  

s e a t s .  H e  walks  w i t h  a  l i m p  a s  one  l e g  i s  now a  l i t t l e  s h o r t e r  t h a n  

t h e  o t h e r ,  and h a s  t r o u b l e  wa lk ing  a s  h e  d o e s  a l o t  o f  t h i s  
. . 

p a r t i c u l a r l y  a t  t r a d e  shows. 

The a r t i f i c a l  h i p  h a s  i t s  r e s t r i c t i o n s ,  h e  s h o u l d  n o t  

c r o s s  h i s  l e g s ,  s h o u l d  n o t  bend a t  a n  a n g l e  o f  more t h a n  90  d e g r e e s  

and a s  a  r e s u l t  he  h a s  deve loped  a  phob ia  b e c a u s e  o f  t h e  c a r e  h e  

h a s  t o  e x e r c i s e .  H e  a l s o  h a s  a  f e a r  o f  i n f e c t i o n s .  

H i s  i n j u r i e s  have  p r e v e n t e d  him from e n j o y i n g  t h e  

r e c r e a t i o n  h e  i s  accustomed t o  i n c l u d i n g  h o r s e b a c k  r i d i n g ,  g o l f ,  

b o a t i n g ,  swimming, p l a y i n g  o f  c a r d s ,  t r a v e l l i n g  and v i s i t i n g  museums. 

A t  b e s t  o f  t i m e s  h e  i s  s low,  c a n n o t  walk f a s t  and t h i s  impinges  

on  h i s  enjoyment .  H e  i s  u n a b l e  t o  s i t  i n  h i s  bed w i t h  h i s  f e e t  i n  

t h e  bed - t h e y  have  t o  b e  o f f  when s i t t i n g .  H e  i s  r e s t r i c t e d  i n  

hav ing  s e x u a l  i n t e r c o u r s e  b e c a u s e  o f  t h e  r a n g e  o f  mot ion  it i s  

d i f f i c u l t  i n  r o t a t i n g  h i s  h i p s  a s  h e  e n c o u n t e r s  p a i n  i n  s o  do ing .  

H e  a l s o  h a s  d i f f i c u l t y  i n  g e t t i n g  on t h e  t o i l e t  a s  t h e  p o i n t  a t  

which h i s  l e g s  t o u c h  t h e  s e a t  c a u s e s  p a i n .  H i s  m e n t a l  a t t i t u d e  

i s  a l s o  a f f e c t e d  a s  t h e  i n j u r i e s  preoccupy h i s  v e r y  e x i s t e n c e ,  

something h e  t h i n k s  a b o u t  d a i l y .  

A f t e r  h i s  f i r s t  i l l n e s s ,  h e  had t o  u s e  two c r u t c h e s  f o r  

a b o u t  f i f t e e n  months. T h e r e a f t e r  h e  h a s . h a d  t o  u s e  a  wa lk ing  s t i c k  

up t o  t h e  p r e s e n t .  H e  c u r r e n t l y  wears  s u p p o r t  s t o c k i n g s  t o  c o n t a i n  

t h e  s w e l l i n g  i n  t h e  l e g .  H e  h a s  a  problem s t a n d i n g  a s  one  l e g  i s  



' s h o r t e r  and weaker t h a n  t h e  o t h e r  which makes s t a n d i n g  on t h e  good .One 

l e g  t i resome.  

Cross-examined by M r .  Goffe ,  he s a i d  t h a t  t h e  a c c i d e n t  

took p l a c e  a t  a  T j u n c t i o n .  The road i s  s t r a i g h t  from T r a f a l g a r  

Road t o  t h a t j u n c t i o n  and it i s  n e i t h e r  wide nor  ve ry  narrow, 

though narrower t h a n  T r a f a l g a r  Road. 

(-:, The t r e n c h  was r i g h t  i n  t h e  junc t ion .  The mound of  e a r t h  

and d i r t w e r e b l o c k i n g  b o t h  l a n e s .  There were no warning l i g h t s  and 

t h e  a r e a  was n o t  i l l u m i n a t e d .  The s i t e  of  t h e  road r e p a i r s  was 

da rk  and he does  n o t  remember whether s t r e e t  l i g h t s  were on. P r i o r  

t o  t h e  a c c i d e n t  h i s  l i g h t s  were on dim, t h e  range t h e n  be ing  about  

40 f e e t .  He saw t h e  mound when he was 20 f e e t  away from it. He 

d i d  n o t  s e e  t h e  mound e a r l i e r  a s  it was of  t h e  same c o l o u r  a s  t h e  

road.  

He den ied  t r a v e l l i n g  a t  a  speed of more than  30 mi l e s  

p e r  hour .  A t  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour h i s  c a r  cou ld  n o t  s t o p  w i t h i n  20 

f e e t  - t h a t  it would t a k e  70 f e e t  t o  s t o p  i f  he was d r i v i n g  a t  

t h a t  speed.  I f  he had seen  t h e  mound e a r l i e r  he could  not. have 

s topped on t ime.  He admi t t ed  be ing  t i r e d  a t  t h e  t ime of t h e  

a c c i d e n t  b u t  n o t  t o  t h e  p o i n t  of f a l l i n g  a s l e e p  behind t h e  wheel. 

He a l s o  admit ted t h a t  h i s  v e h i c l e  was equipped wi th  s e a t - b e l t s  

b u t  he was n o t  wearing one a t  t h e  t ime.  He s a i d  t h a t  a t  t h e  t ime 

o f  t h e  impact ,  he was thrown o u t  of h i s  s e a t  a l b e i t  he knew t h a t  

t h e  purpose of t h e  s e a t - b e l t s  was t o  reduce t h e  chance of t h a t  



' happening.  The c a r  t r a v e l l e d  a t  l e a s t ,  1 0 0 " f e e t  from t h e  mound t o  

t h e  e lec t r i c  p o l e  - he  was u n a b l e  t o  p r e s s  t h e  b r a k e s  a s  he  was 

thrown o u t  o f  h i s  s e a t .  

H e  d i d  n o t  see t h e  t r e n c h  a t  t h e  same t i m e  h e  saw t h e  

mound. The t r e n c h  was below t h e  l e v e l  o f  t h e  r o a d  s o  it was n o t  

obv ious  t o  him u n t i l  h e  r a n  i n t o  it. The res t  o f  t h e  r o a d  was 

(;I a s p h a l t e d  - b l a c k  - and i n  good c o n d i t i o n .  The mound was a b o u t  

2 f e e t  h i g h ,  t h e  open t r e n c h  a b o u t  8 i n c h e s  deep .  I t  d i d  n o t  

t a k e  up t h e  r o a d  c o m p l e t e l y .  H e  d i d  n o t  know i f  h e  c o u l d  have  

p a s s e d  on e i t h e r  s i d e  o f  it - h e  had t o  make a  d e c i s i o n  i n s t a n t l y .  

H e  d e n i e d  t h a t  he  was n o t  keep ing  a  p r o p e r  l o o k - a t  and  a l s o  t h a t  

he was d r i v i n g  t o o  f a s t  i n  t h e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s .  P r i o r  t o  t h e  a c c i d e n t  

h e  had no problems t o  h i s  l e f t  l e g  o r  h i p .  H e  h a s  had no h i p  i n j u r i e s  

b e f o r e .  

Cross-examined by M r .  L y t t l e ,  h e  s a i d  he  was d r i v i n g  

a l o n g  Musgrave Avenue, a  s t r a i g h t  r o a d  which t o o k  him beyond t h e  

mound. H e  c o u l d  have  t u r n e d  l e f t  up Comlin Bank Road where t h e r e  

would have  been no o b s t r u c t i o n .  He was d r i v i n g  a l o n g  Musgrave 

Avenue a t  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour  and a p p l i e d  h i s  b r a k e s  20 f e e t  from 

t h e  mound and p u l l e d  l e f t  a s  h e  d i d  n o t  want  t o  s e r v e  i n t o  t h e  

mound. I t  was a f t e r  he  a p p l i e d  h i s  b r a k e s  t h a t  h i s  v e h i c l e  went 

i n t o  t h e  open t r e n c h .  I t  was when t h e  v e h i c l e  went  i n t o  t h e  open 

t r e n c h  t h a t  he  was thrown from h i s  s e a t .  H e  d e n i e d  t r a v e l l i n g  a t  

more t h a n  30 m i l e s  p e r  h o u r ,  from t h e  t r e n c h  t o  t h e  l i g h t  p o l e  
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where he  c o l l i d e d  i s  100 f e e t .  H i s  v e h i c l e  t r a v e l l e d  a  d i s t a n c e  

of  100 f e e t - f r o m  t h e  l e f t  s i d e  of  t h e  road  on Musgrave Avenue 

and c o l l i d e d  wi th  t h e  p o l e  on t h e  r i g h t  s i d e  of  t h e  road.  He den ied  

t e l l i n g  D r .  Vaughn t h a t  he  had "washed" i n t o  a  l i g h t  po l e .  I t  was 

t h e  open t r e n c h  t h a t  caused him t o  l o s e  c o n t r o l  of  h i s  v e h i c l e .  

He den ied  t h e  sugges t ion  t h a t  t h e r e  were fou r  cones  p l aced  i n  t h e  

middle of  t h e  road  j u s t  b e f o r e  one g e t s  t o  t h e  t r e n c h .  He s a i d  

h i s  v e h i c l e  d i d  n o t  mount t h e  c u r b  w a l l  - he cannot  s ay  i f  t h e r e  

i s  a  9 i n c h  cu rb  w a l l  j u s t  b e f o r e  t h e  l i g h t  post . -  He den ied  t h a t  

a f t e r  he  went i n t o  t h e  t r e n c h ,  he  t r a v e l l e d  ove r  100 f e e t  and t h e n  

t h e  v e h i c l e  c rashed  and went a c r o s s  t h e  road.  D r .  Vaughn was h i s  

medical  doc to r  i n  Jamaica  and p r e s c r i b e d  t h e  c r u t c h e s  f o r  him and 

i n s t r u c t e d  him abou t  i t s  use .  He was a b l e  t o  amble a long  on t h e  

c r u t c h e s  b e f o r e  he  d i d  t h e  h i p  su rge ry  i n  F l o r i d a .  During t h a t  

t ime he went t o  work a t  Daytona. H e  den ied  s u f f e r i n g  any i n j u r y  

t o  h i s  h i p ,  p e l v i c  a r e a  o r  t h e  a f f e c t e d  l e g  p r i o r  t o  t h e  a c c i d e n t .  

Cross-examined by M r .  Daley, he  s a i d  t h e  t r e n c h  was 

30 i n c h e s  wide by 8 i n c h e s  deep.  That  when he h i t  t h e  t r e n c h  he 

was t r a v e l l i n g  a t  a  speed less than  30 mi l e s  p e r  hour .  H e  a p p l i e d  

h i s  b r a k e s  immediately on s e e i n g  t h e  mound. He was n o t  i n  c o n t r o l  

of  t h e  v e h i c l e  a f t e r  it h i t  t h e  t r e n c h .  He den ied  he  was t r a v e l l i n g  

a t  a  speed f a r  i n  exces s  of  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour why he had no proper  

c o n t r o l  over  t h e  v e h i c l e  and the reby  caus ing  t h e  a c c i d e n t .  

Re-examined he s a i d  t h e r e  were no s i g n s  i n v i t i n g  him t o  t a k e  d e t o u r  

i n t o  ~ o m l i n  Bank Road. I t  was one t r a n s a c t i o n  from t h e  h i t t i n g  of 



the trench to his ending up in the light pole. He got into the 

open trench because he was avoiding the mound which was in front 

of him and there was no other way. 

Winston Gassop, a corporal of police said that about 

1:45 a.m. January 14, 1995, as a result of a radio message he 

received, he- went to Musgrave Avenue where he saw a ~itara motor 

vehicle which was extensively damaged. He noticed the driver of 

the vehicle, the plaintiff was bleeding severely all over his 

body and unable to walk. He also observed that there was a huge 

heap of dirt with little road space. There were no signs or 

reflecting lights to indicate that construction was in progress. 

He did not see any cones. There were no lights in the area - it 

was dark. This dangerous area he said could not be seen from a 

far distance. He had to use spot lights on the left of his 

service vehicle to assist him. The plaintiff was conscious and 

did not appear to be under the influence of alcohol. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Goffe, he said he did not see 

any lights on Musgrave Avenue nor did he see any lights in the 

area. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lyttle, he denied that Musgrave 

Avenue is a dead straight road from the top of Trafalgar Road. He 

saw obstruction in the road i.e. a mound of earth and a hole in 

C I the middle of the road. That vehicles could not turn left into 

Camden Road. Vehicles going north had very little space to go 



.through. Going south a very small vehicle could pass. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Earle, he said he saw the obstruction 

in the road when he was 4 chain from it. It was not possible for 

him to have seen it before. He did not see any cones surrounding 

the area - he did not see any cones at all. He disagreed that the 

damage to the Vitara was consistent with excessive speed. The light. 

pole the vehicle ran into was standing straight. 

At this stage Mr. Goffe applied for amendment to his 

defence to include contributory negligence and secondly to visit 

the locus in quo. Both applications were refused. 

Dr. Kenneth Vaughn an orthopaedic surgeon treated the 

plaintiff for fracture of the hip joints. He said the plaintiff 

subsequently developed osteo-arthritis of the hip joint which 

necessitated him having a total hip replacement which was done in 

the U.S.A. in May 1996. Bone graft may have to be done and there 

is a likelihood of further hip revision. Remissions do not last 

as long as primary hips which last for approximately 10 years 

whilst revisions last approximately 5 years. 

Cross-examined Mr. Goffe, he said the natural 

consequences of osteo-arthritis is a vascular neurosis. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lyttle, he said that the injuries 

to the plaintiff's head are consistent with someone sitting in front 

of a vehicle and crashing with a light pole. He said the plaintiff 

did tell him'that he ran off the road and ran into a-light pole. 



Cross-examined by Mr. Earl@, he said that (the) hip 

replacement is done in Jamaica at a cost of approximately $300,000. 

That when he examined the plaintiff, there was no evidence of a 

previous leg or hip injury. 

The third defendant Basil James, gave evidence saying 

he is the managing director of the fifth defendant, Basil James 

Construction and Plumbing Services Limited and has been involved 

in building construction for 23 years, 18 of which he was a 

superintendent in the waste-water division of the National Water 

Commission and that he is an employee of the fifth defendant. 

He said that in January 1995, he was employed by the 

second defendant A. Chong Limited in the construction of a sewerage 

system in the area of Musgrave Avenue taking in Comlin Bank Road. 

The work involved the laying of 18 inches mains from Braemer Avenue 

into Musgrave Avenue to facilitate premises at an open lot. His 

company dug a trench across the road about 1 week prior to the 

accident. It was approximately 7 feet deep and 2 feet six inches 

wide and pipes were laid in it. Having dug the drain across the 

road, a 4 feet diameter man-hole was put in - this at the center 
of the intersection. He left workmen working in the man-hole 

about 9:00 p.m. that night. Two cones were placed to the northern 

side and two to the southern. It was a busy Friday and traffic 

passed on both sides. 



When he left at 9:00 p.m. the trench was backfilled 

with marl to the level of the road. He- denied the trench was 

18 inches deep. He did not leave a mound of earth or filling from 

the trench in the road. Apart from the cones there was nothing 

left in the road to form a barrier or obstruction. 

There was also light coming from a lightpole 104 feet 

from the intersection. 

CI On the morning of the 14th he discovered one of the 

cones missing. 

He denied that he or his company failed to provide 

adequate warning regarding the mound or the manhole. He said that 

there was no need to provide other protection as there were four 

self-illuminated cones around the manhole cover. There was no 

need to provide a warning for the open trench as there was none. 

Nor was there a need to re-route traffic that night as men were 

working in the area of the manhole inside it. Trafalgar Road 

to the top of Musgrave Road is straight no bend in it. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Goffe, he said it was the second 

defendant who prepared the plans. The sixth defendant, The National 

Water Commission would be responsible for approving the design and 

sewer trunk. In this case the (N.W.C.) sixth defendant accepted 

responsibility of designing and constructing the sewer trunk. When 

the work was completed, the sixth defendant inspected it. This was 

on the 23rd January 1995 - he was present along with Garfield Haughton, 
manager of the Waste Water Department of the N.W.C. It was the 



s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  t h a t  a ccep t ed  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  d e s i g n i n g  and 

c o n s t r u c t i n g  t h e  sewer t r u n k .  

Cross-examined by M r .  E a r l e ,  he  s a i d  t h a t  no t i m e  d i d  

he  l e a v e  t h e  t r e n c h  on Comlin Bank Road open - it was b a c k f i l l e d .  

He never  saw a  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  o f  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  come t h e r e  

d u r i n g  c o n s t r u c t i o n .  The f i r s t  de f endan t  came t h e r e  b e f o r e  t h e  

work s t a r t e d  on omore t h a n  one occa s ion .  The f i r s t  d e f e n d a n t  

showed him where t h e  p i p e s  were go ing  and he  would obse rve  t h e  work 

. - 
t h a t  he  was do ing .  I n  c a r r y i n g  o u t  t h e  work l a y i n g  t h e  p i p e s ,  he  

was n o t  r e p r e s e n t i n g  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t ,  he  was do ing  t h e  work f o r  

t h e  f i r s t  de f endan t ;  c o n t a c t  w i t h  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  o n l y  f o r  t h e  

payment. When he  wro t e  e x h i b i t  15  he was n o t  r e p r e s e n t i n g  t h e  s i x t h  

de f endan t .  H e  s a i d  he  l a i d  p i p e s  a long  Comlin Bank Road ' connec t ing  

it o n B r a e ~ n e r  Avenue, he a l s o  i n s t a l l e d  2 'x3"  d i ame te r  manholes - one 

i n  t h e  c e n t e r  o f  Comlin Bank Road and t h e  o t h e r  a t  t h e  i n t e r s e c t i o n  

o f  Musgrave and Comlin Bank Roads. H e  a l s o  i n s t a l l e d  an  8"  l a t e r a l  

t o  number 4 Musgrave Avenue, p u t t i n g  it back i n  i t s  o r i g i n a l  

c o n d i t i o n .  The t o t a l  excava ted  a r e a  was comple te ly  r e i n s t a t e d .  

H i s  company d i d  t h e  job  f o r  $433,682.60 t h i s  a f t e r  r educ ing  t h e  

o r i g i n a l  f i g u r e  by $10,000 which t h e  f i r s t  de f endan t  s a i d  was h igh .  

The 6 t h  d e f e n d a n t  approved t h e  d e s i g n  o f  t h e  sys tem - 
t h e y  do n o t  do  t h e  d e s i g n  themse lves .  

i - 
A t  2:00 p.m. on t h e  13 /1 /95  a l l  t h e  t r e n c h e s  were 

a l r e a d y  b a c k f i l l e d  t h e  o n l y  work l e f t  t o  be  done w e r e  i n s i d e  t h e  

manhole on Musgrave Avenue. H e  l e f t  t h e  s i t e  a t  9:00 p.m., manhole 



cover  was i n  p l ace  - wi th  wet cement around it and t h a t  i s  why he. 

l e f t  s e l f - i l l u m i n a t i n g  cones  around it. He r e t u r n e d  t o  t h e  s i t e  

a t  9:00 a.m. t h e  fo l lowing  day when t h r e e  of t h e  f o u r  cones where 

s t i l l  i n  p l ace .  He d i d  n o t  s e e  any i m p r i n t  i n  t h e  cement a s  i f  

v e h i c l e s  had d r i v e n  over  it. 

Cross-examined M r .  Manderson-Jones, he s a i d  t h e  

s u p e r v i s i o n  charge he r e f e r r e d  t o  i n  t h e  e s t i m a t e  were f o r  pe r sons  

C who superv ised .  A l l  t h e  l a b o u r e r s  who worked on t h a t  s i t e  were 

employed by h i s  company t h e  f i f t h  defendant .  He d i d  t h e  s u p e r v i s i o n .  

He s a i d  t h a t  t h e  road  s u r f a c e  a t  Musgrave Avenue was r e i n s t a t e d  when 

t h e  job was completed. 

The t r e n c h  t o  t h e  r i g h t  of  t h e  manhole was dug on t h e  

1 3 t h  and was b a c k f i l l e d  t h e  same day. When he l e f t  it was n o t  

a s p h a l t e d .  There was no space  l e f t  i n  t h e  t r e n c h  f o r  a s p h a l t i n g  

C' a f t e r  b a c k f i l l i n g .  He s a i d  he was g iven  s p e c i f i c a t i o n s  t h a t  would 

a l low f o r  t h e  l a y e r  of a s p h a l t  t o  be  r e i n s t a t e d  - which i s  one i n c h  

- he d i d  n o t  comply. He d i d  n o t  have any of t h e  fo l lowing  s i g n s  

l e f t  on t h e  premises when he f i n i s h e d  working on t h e  1 3 t h  eg.  

"de tou r " ,  "road works ahead",  "slow",  " c a u t i o n " ,  " p a s s  t h i s  s i d e " .  

He d i d  n o t  provide a  l i g h t  f o r  t h e  s p o t .  He d i d  n o t  have p l a n s  

t o  work on t h e  road up t o  9 : 0 0  p.m., b u t  t h e  work took them t o  

t h a t  t ime.  There were l i g h t s  overhead d i r e c t l y  over  t h e  manhole 

- t h a t  i s  t h e  l i g h t  used t o  work i n  t h e  manhole. From t h e  manhole i 
he took o u t  about  15 cm. ya rds  of  e a r t h  and from t h e  t r e n c h  a  l i t t l e  

l e s s .  The e a r t h  was s t o r e d  i n  a d j o i n i n g  premises .  He never  had a  

drop of  e a r t h  on Musgrave Avenue t o  f i l l  t h e  t r e n c h .  He den ied  t h a t  



the earth removed from the manhole and the trench were left near 
I 

the manhole on Musgrave Avenue. 

He did not consider it necessary to install any warning 

in respect of the backfilled trench as there was no need for caution. 
I 

One could drive at 30 miles per hour on MusgraveAvenue I 

! 

when he left there on the 13th - above that would be unlawful. 
The first defendant ALton Chong, testified that he is 

the Managing Director fo the second defendant Company which provides 

designs in water supply, plumbing and drainage etc. In March 

1994, he said that at the request of ~rchitects, McMorris, Sibbly 

Robinson, he prepared plans which were drawings that depict the 

internal sewer layout mainly including pipes and location of 

manholes within the proposed development by Mutual Life on ComlinBank Rd 

and Musgrave Avenue. Construction was done by fifth defendant and 

f"- 'I was paid for by Surrey Const-ruction Limited. Whilst work was being 

done by the fifth defendant company he visited the site to ensure 

that the project had started. He had gone there between the 1st 

to the 13th January 1995 to see if the lateral to the development 

had been done, i.e. the manhole at the junction of Musgrave Avenue 

to his client's, Jamaica Mutual Life's property. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lyttle, he said he had gone to 

the site as he had expected a monument to be installed before the 

project was completed. He could not say whether or not the manhole 

was in place when he visited the site. He said that the sixth 

defendant must approve plans and the cutting of roads before they 



can  be  implemented. B a c k f i l l i n g  a f t e r  p i p e s  a r e  l a i d  must be  done 

t o  t h e  s p e c i f i c a t i o n s  o f  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t .  

Cross-examined by M r .  E a r l e ,  he  d e n i e d  he had gone t o  

t h e  s i t e  on more t h a n  one o c c a s i o n  s u p e r v i s i n g  t h e  work done by 

t h e  f i f t h  de f endan t .  H e  a l s o  den i ed  t h a t  he  s e l e c t e d  t h e  f i f t h  

d e f e n d a n t  t o  d o  t h e  work a s  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  d i d  n o t  approve 

o f  Ancar Development Company. 

A l l  payments f o r  work done and t h e  d e s i g n  o f  t h e  sys tem 

were made e i t h e r  by S u r r e y  C o n s t r u c t i o n  Company d i r e c t l y  o f  th rough  

t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  a s  c o u r i e r .  H e  r e g a r d s  t h e  t h i r d  d e f e n d a n t  a s  

a n  e x c e l l e n t  c o n t r a c t o r  f o r  h i s  speed ,  p r i c e ,  knowledge o f  t h e  

work, c r e a t i v e n e s s  and p e r s o n a l  conduc t .  H e  h a s  neve r  s u p e r v i s e d  

h i s  work. 

The t h i r d  d e f e n d a n t  h a s  on many o c c a s i o n s  done work 

on p r o j e c t s  f o r  which he  was c o n s u l t a n t ,  and on each  o c c a s i o n  he  CI' 
h a s  l e f t  t h e  s i t e  i n  good c o n d i t i o n .  H e  d en i ed  t h a t  i n  December 

1994 two o p t i o n s  w e r e  p u t  t o  him by N a t i o n a l  Water Commission (1) 

N a t i o n a l  Water Commission t o  unde r t ake  . f u l l  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h e  

sewage scheme c o n s t r u c t i o n  a t  c o s t  o f  $400,000 o r  ( 2 )  To s imply  

unde r t ake  s u p e r v i s i o n  o f  t h e  work a t  a  c o s t  of  $26,000.  

H e  d e n i e d  r e spond ing  t o  o p t i o n  number 2.  

G a r f i e l d  Haughton gave ev idence  on b e h a l f  o f  t h e  s i x t h  

(--; d e f e n d a n t .  H e  i s  a  c i v i l  e n g i n e e r  employed t o  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Water 

Commission t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  a s  manager o f  w a s t e  wa te r  o p e r a t i o n s  

fo r  t h e  Corpo ra t e  Area.  H e  i s  r e s p o n s i b l e  f o r  t h e  o p e r a t i o n s  o f  

a l l  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Water 



Commission sewage works and vetting off' plans submitted for 

approval of housing developments. On the 5th July 1994 he 

received an application signed by the first defendant for sewerage 

services on a property located on Musgrave Avenue. 

A number of phone call subsequently passed between them because 

there was disagreement as to who should be responsible for 
. . 

the design of the proposed mains. Mr. Chong wanted the National 

Water Commission to do the designs, but he said that the National 

Water Commission does not do designs for private contractors. 

As a result of Mr. Chong's insistence, he relented and wrote 

him to the effect that initially the National Water Commission 

f - " ,  would take responsibility for the designs and construction of the 
\...>, 

sewer mains provided they were remunerated. He said he was 

bending over backwards to accommodate Mr. Chong as the National 

Water Commission does not do design work. 

Reproduced hereunder is the letter written to 

Mr. Chong the first defendant and which is admitted in evidence 

as Exhibit 26. 



I . '  1 . 

" N a t i o n a l  Water  Commission 
J u l y  29 ,  1994 
Anchong L i m i t e d  
45 Mannings H i l l  Road 
K i n g s t o n  8 

A t t e n t i o n :  Mr. A l l e n  D, C h o n q  

. . . . 

Dear  S i r ,  

SUBJECT: Sewer c o n n e c t i o n  f o r  Housing Development  
By Mutua l  L i f e  - Musgrave Road & Comlin 
Bank Avenue 

I n  r e s p o n s e  t o  y o u r  l e t t e r  o f  J u l y  22 ,  1994 ,  t h e  N a t i o n a l  
Water  Commission ( N . W . C . )  w i l l  u n d e r t a k e  t h e  
r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  d e s i g n i n g  and  c o n s t r u c k i n g  t h e  sewer 
t r u c k  i n  q u e s t i o n .  

The c o s t  o f  d e s i g n i n g  t h e  sewers i s  Twenty Thousand 
D o l l a r s  ( $ 2 0 , 0 0 0 . 0 0 ) ,  and t h e  p r o j e c t e d  c o m p l e t i o n  d a t e  
i s  s e v e n  ( 7 )  work ing  d a y s  upon r e c e i p t  o f  t h i s  sum. 
The c o s t  o f  c o n s t r u c t i o n  c a n  o n l y  b e  a r r i v e d  at '  upon 
r e c e i p t  o f  t h e  d e s i g n  d r a w i n g s  and  t h i s  would b e  
i n d i c a t e d  t o  you a l o n g  w i t h  t h e  c o m p l e t i o n  t i m e .  

The s p e e d  o f  c o n p l e t i o n  o f  t h i s  j o b  i s  t h e r e f o r e ' a e p e n d e n t  
o n  how q u i c k l y  t h e  d e s i g n  c o s t  i s  p a i d .  

Yours  t r u l y  

N a t i o n a l  Wate r  Commission 

G a r f i e l d  Haughton 
E n g i n e e r  W a s t e w a t e r  



. He admitted that the ~ational Water Commission did 

receive the $20,000 for the design however the design was done 

by S.P.K. Designs Limited which he approved and that sum was paid 

over to them. He also admitted that the National Water Commission 

prepared the estimate (Exhibit 33 (a) for Comlin ~ a n k  ~ o a d  which 

was sent to Mr. Chong the 1st defendant who,communicated to him 

that the estimate was high and that he disputed the cost. 

In response to a letter written to the National Water 

Commission by Mr. Chong, Mr. Haughton said he had communicated to 
. - 

him that Ancar Development and Construction Co. Ltd. was not on the 

list of National Water Commission approved contractors. With 

reference to exhibit 26, he said that that position subsequently 

changed during the last quarter of 1994 normally the National 

Water Commission would have total responsibility of the sewer 

mains, so long as payment was made, the National Water Commission 

would be responsible for the work from the beginning, i.e. the 

construction, opening of the road laying of pipes, building 

manholes, compacting, road reinstatement and site clearance. 

Since then the National Water Commission started giving their 

.clients the option of choslng a contractor from their approved 

list and contracts would be made between the client and the 

contractor. The National Water Commission would only be paid 

to supervise to its standard and specifications. The 

spec'ifications and standards would take into consideration the 



t h e  f o l l o w i n g :  

(1) t h e  t r e n c h  - i t s  d e p t h ,  w i d t h  and g r a d i e n t  

( 2 )  c l a s s  A & B p r o t e c t i o n  r e g a r d i n g  c o r r e c t  p i p e  s i z e  and sand  

p i l l o w  below it 

( 3 )  b a c k - f i l l i n g  and compact ing  

( 4 )  i n t e g r i t y  o f  t h e  manhole and 

( 5 )  l a t e r a l  c o n n e c t i o n s  from t h e  p i p e  manhole t o  t h e  p r o p e r t y .  

H e  t e s t i f i e d  f u r t h e r  t h a t  a  l e t t e r  d a t e d  December 23 ,  1994 ( E x h i b i t  

39)  was w r i t t e n  t o  M r .  Chong o u t l i n i n g  t h e  o p t i o n s  open t o  him. 

M r .  Chong d e n i e s  r e c e i v i n g  t h i s  l e t t e r  which r e a d s .  

" N a t i o n a l  Water Coqunission - - 

December 23,  1994 

M r .  A.  Chong 
Managing D i r e c t o r  
A .  Chong L td .  
45 Mannings H i l l  R d .  
K ings ton  8  

Dear S i r ,  

R e :  Sewer L a t e r a l  Connec t ion  on Comlin 
Bank Road 

See  a t t a c h e d  N a t i o n a l  Water Commission e s t i m a t e  f o r  t h e  
above. 

There  a r e  two c o u r s e s  o f  a c t i o n  open t o  you. 

( a )  Pay N a t i o n a l  Water Commission Four  Hundred 
and For ty -Three  Thousand S i x  Hundred and 
Eighty- two D o l l a r s  and S i x t y  C e n t s  
($443,628.60)  and N a t i o n a l  Water Commission 

w i l l  have  t o t a l  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  
c o m p l e t i o n  o f  t h e  job.  

( b )  Pay N a t i o n a l  Water Commission a  s u p e r v i s i o n  
f e e  o f  Twenty-Six Thousand D o l l a r s  ( $ 2 6 , 0 0 0 . 0 0 ) ,  
employ a  c o n t r a c t o r  a c c e p t a b l e  t o  t h e  N a t i o n a l  
Water Commission ( a  l i s t  c a n  b e  p r o v i d e d )  
and N a t i o n a l  Water Commission w i l l  s u p e r v i s e  



the job so as to ensure it meets the National I 

Water ~ommission'standards. I 

Could you please communicate the variant, which is most 
acceptable to you, at the earliest possible date. I I 

..................... 
Garfield Haughton 
Engineer - wastewater" 

He said that at the time of writing this letter the work 

C had already commenced. The letter was written to formalize the 

work process and the National Water Commission's involvement. He 
. - 

had communicated to Mr. Chong over the telephone the list of 1 ~ 
contractors who said he knew Mr. James .who had already worked with 

him and he would go the route of finding a contractor and paying 

the National Water Commission the suggested sum for supervison. 

Mr. Haughton testified further that he never.employed any 

contractor to do any construction work on Musgrave Avenue between 
(.. . 

December 1994 and Zanuary, 1995; neither did he pay any contractor 

to do any construction work at that time. He said that 

no request was made of him to pay any contractor to do construction 

work, that he held noretention money for work on that contract,, 

that he never wrote any of the related agencies before construction 

commenced in relation to the opening up of roads on Comlin Bank 

Road or Musgrave Avenueland that the National Water Commission 

c- did not put up detour or re-routing signs in relation to the works. .- 

He denied giving Mr. James permission or authorisation to 

write on behalf of the National Water Commission a'letter dated 

9th December 1994 and said he was not aware of it. 
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,, He had gone to the site approximately 6 times between 

the 6th and 25th January 1995, the first time being the 6th. He 

had been there Friday the 13th January 1995 at about 2:00 p.m. 

where he saw workmen putting on the manhole cover at the 

intersection of Musgrave Avenue and Comlin Bank road, the state of 

the work was completed apart from re-asphalting, and men were clearly 

around the edges of the manhole and compacting the road surfaces. 

There was no excavated trench along Comlin Bank Road but there 

was marl and stabilizing material, marl mixed with cement where 

the road was cut. Later that same day he went back on the site 

at about 5:30 p.m. where he found the manhole and its levels to 

be correct. Workers were working on the inverts in the manhole 

and four cones were placed around the manhole at the time. He 

said he returned to the site on the 23rd January, 1995 as Mr. 

Chong the first defendant had asked him to sign off the job so 

C that he could pay off the contractor. He did the final inspection 

that day and wrote to Mr. Chong the following day communicating to 

him that everything was done to specification. See letter dated 

January 24, 1995 which is reproduced below. 

"National Water Commission 
January 24, 1995 

Mr. A. Chong 
Anchong Limited 
Mannings Hill Road 
Kingston 

Dear Sir, 

Construction of Seven Main 
on Comlin Bank Road 



The above-mentioned construction was 
inspected on ~anuarg 23, 1995 at 10:OO a.m. 
by a team from the National Water Commission 
and was found to be completed and done to 
the standards of the National Water Commission. 

Yours truly, 

Garfield Haughton 
Engineer Wastewater" 

He said that a letter addressed to him from Mr. Chong 

dated January 17, 1995 was ignored by him as the only money the 

National Water Commission received was $20,000 for design and 

$26,000 for supervision; there was no money from which a retainer 

could have been made. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Goffe he maintained that Mr. 

James was not a representative of the National Water Commission 

and nobody in his department gave him permission to say so. He 

denied the letter exhibit 39 to be a sham. He said that when 

the lateral was built, at the end of construction it was the 

National Water Commission's property and it services other areas 

apart from the lot for which it was built and charges are made for 

such services by the National Water Commission Cross-examined by 

Mr. Lyttle he said marl and cement were used as stabilizers to 

the surface which was compacted from 9" below the surface. It 

is not inappropriate to bring the stabilizer to 1" above the road 
,..-. , 

C,; surf ace. 

Cross-examined by Dr. Manderson-Jones, he said he did 

not see any earth on the surface of the road and there was no 

trench leading from the manhole to the premises. He did not see 



any e a r t h  p i l e d  up nor  d i d  he  s e e  a  monument. H e  was n o t  s u r e  

who p a i d  Na t iona l  Water (:ormission t h e  s u p e r v i s i o n  f e e  o r  when 

it was pa id .  The s u p e r v i s i o n  was done f o r  M r .  Chong. 

E a r t h  t aken  f r o m - t h e  manhole by e x c a v a t i o n  would be  

i n  t h e  r e g i o n  o f  8 - 1 2  c u b i c  y a r d s  and a  l i t t l e  more i n  r e s p e c t  

o f  t h e  t r e n c h  which would c a r r y  t h e  p i p e s  a c r o s s  Musgrave Avenue. 

F ind ings  : 

I am s a t i s f i e d  on t h e  ev idence  t h a t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  

s u f f e r e d  s e v e r e  i n j u r i e s  a s  a  r e s u l t  o f  t h e  a c c i d e n t  which occu r r ed  

i n  t h e  v i c i n i t y  o f  a - w o r k  s i t e  a long  MusgraveAvenue i n  t h e  p a r i s h  

o f  S t .  Andrew. in  t h e  e a r l y  morning o f  J anua ry  1 4 ,  1995. 

I f i n d  a s  a  f a c t  t h a t  p i p e s  w e r e  be ing  l a i d  by workmen 

from B a s i l  James C o n s t r u c t i o n  and Plumbing Limited t h e  f i f t h  

d e f e n d a n t ,  and t h a t  t h e y  had dug a  t r e n c h  a c r o s s  Musgrave Avenue 

t o  f a c i l i t a t e  t h i s  e x e r c i s e .  I a c c e p t  t h e  ev idence  o f  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  
( - , I !  

Lb and h i s  w i t n e s s  Corpo ra l  Gassop t h a t  t h e r e  was a  mound of  e a r t h  

l e f t  i n  t h e  roadway. Although i n  h i s  ev idence ,  B a s i l  James t h e  

t h i r d  de fendan t  den i ed  t h a t  t h e r e  was any mound o f . e a r t h  l e f t  

i n  t h e  roadway, h i s  a f f i d a v i t  o f  t h e  1 1 t h  November 1996, i n  answer 

t o  an  o r d e r  f o r  f u r t h e r  and b e t t e r  p a r t i c u l a r s ,  s u p p o r t s  t h e  

p l a i n t i f f ' s  c o n t e n t i o n  when he  s a i d  i n  ev idence ,  

"The r e d  cones  were p l aced  b e f o r e  
t h e  mound o f  e a r t h  on t h e  l e f t  of  
t h e  road  by t h e  t h i r d  named 
de fendan t . "  



I a l s o  f i n d  a s  a  f a c t  t h a t  a s  a  r e s u l t  o f  excava t ion  done by t h e  

f i f t h  defendant  a h o l e  and an open t r e n c h  w e r e  l e f t  i n  t h e  s a i d  

roadway and t h a t  t h e r e  were no adequate  warning of  t h e  presence  

of t h e  mound of e a r t h ,  h o l e  o r  t r e n c h  and t h a t  a s  a  r e s u l t  an  

o b s t r u c t i o n  of t h e  highway was c r e a t e d .  I f u r t h e r  f i n d  t h a t  

t h e  a r e a  was u n l i t  and t h a t  t h e  passage l e f t  i n  t h e  roadway f o r  

v e h i c l e s  t o  pas s  was narrowed. 

C,~J I f i n d  t h a t  M r .  Jarne's evidence i s  n o t  t r u t h f u l  when 

he s a i d  t h a t  f o u r  i l l u m i n a t e d  cones  were pa l ced  around t h e  manhole 

t o  warn m o t o r i s t s  of  i t s  presence .  The ev idence  of  G a r f i e l d  

Haughton i n  t h i s  r ega rd  l a c k s  c r e d i b i l i t y .  

I conclude t h e r e f o r e  t h a t  t h e s e  f a c t o r s  were t h e  main cause  of 

t h e  a c c i d e n t .  I a c c e p t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  c a s e  t h a t  neg l igence  has  

been e s t a b l i s h e d  a g a i n s t  one o r  more o r  a l l  of  t h e  de fendan t s .  

The f i r s t  and second de fendan t s  i n  t h e i r  defence  have 

n o t  c o n t r a d i c t e d  t h e  v e r s i o n  g iven  by t h e  p l a i n t i f f  a s  t o  how 

t h e  a c c i d e n t  occur red  save  s u g g e s t i o n s  r ega rd ing  e x c e s s i v e  speed 

and n o t  keeping a  p roper  look-out  which were never  pleaded by 

them. 

The t h i r d  and f i f t h  de fendan t s  i n  t h e i r  defence  say  

t h a t  t h e  a c c i d e n t  and r e s u l t a n t  i n j u r i e s  t o  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  were 

s o l e l y  caused o r  c o n t r i b u t e d  t o  by t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  own neg l igence ,  

p a r t i c u l a r i s e d  a s  fol lows:-  
(--. ) 

tdi " ( a )  Dr iv ing  a t  a  speed t h a t  was e x c e s s i v e  i n  a l l  

t h e  c i rcumstances .  

(b )  C o l l i d i n g  i n  t h e  Jamaica Pub l i c  S e r v i c e  Co 

Ltd.  l i g h t p o l e  e x a c t l y  1 0 4  f e e t  away from t h e  

s i t e  complained o f .  



(c) Driving at a speed so great that the impact pushed 

the said Jamaica public Service Co. Ltd. lightpole 

some 6 inches back from its original position and 

chipping off a piece of it. 

(d) Permitting your said vehicle registered 8999AX to 

mount a 9" curb wall and therefore colliding with 

the said Jamaica Public Service Co. Ltd. lightpole 

some 104 feet away. 

(e) Failing to have any proper look-out while 

travelling on the said road. 

(f) Allowing your said vehicle to run off the road 

some 104 feet from the site complained of them 

mounted the sidewalk and there at violently to 

collided with the Jamaica public Service Co. Ltd. 

lightpole on the sidewalk. 

(g) Failing to heed the warning of four red illuminated 

cones posted in the said road near the wet concrete 

to alert motorists to keep to the right so as to 

avoid an accident. 

(h) Failing to have any or any proper control over 

your said vehicle thereby cause the accident. 

(i) Driving without due care and attention on the said 

road there by caused the accident." 

On the question of negligence, the 6th defendant denies 

the particulars of negligence as set out in the amended statement 

of claim and states that if the said accident occurred, which is 

not admitted, the alleged injuries, loss and damage suffered by 



c') 
t h e  p l a i n t i f f  was caused  o r  c o n t r i b u t e d  t o  by t h e  n e g l i g e n c e  of  

, 
- t h e  p l a i n t i f f ,  1st  2nd and 3 r d  de fendan t s  o r  any one o r  more o f  them. 

The p a r t i c u l a r s  o f  n e g l i g e n c e  o f  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  i s  a s  fo l l ows : -  

" ( a )  Dr iv ing  a t  a  speed t h a t  was e x c e s s i v e  i n  a l l  t h e  

c i r cums tances ;  

( b )  C o l l i d i n g  i n t o  t h e  u t i l i t y  p o l e ;  

( c )  F a i l i n g  t o  have any o r  any p r o p e r  l ook  o u t  w h i l e  

t r a v e l l i n g  on t h e  s a i d  road;  

( d )  F a i l i n g  t o  have any o r  any p rope r  c o n t r o l  o v e r  

h i s  s a i d  v e h i c l e  t h e r e b y  c a u s i n g  t h e  a l l e g e d  
. - - 

a c c i d e n t ;  

( e )  Dr iv ing  w i t h o u t  due c a r e  and a t t e n t i o n  on t h e  s a i d  

road;  

( f )  F a i l i n g  t o  heed warning i n d i c a t o r s  p l aced  on t h e  

s a i d  road  by t h e  l s t ,  2nd o r  3 rd  d e f e n d a n t s  t o  

a l e r t  m o t o r i s t s  t o  avo id  t h a t  s e c t i o n  o f  t h e  

roadway; 

( g )  F a i l i n g  t o  s t o p ,  t o  slow down, t o  swerve o r  s o  t o  

manage o r  c o n t r o l  h i s  s a i d  motor v e h i c l e  a s  t o  

avo id  c o l l i d i n g  i n t o  t h e  s a i d  u t i l i t y  p o l e  a s  

a l l e g e d  o r  a t  a l l ; "  

A common t h r e a d  t h a t  r u n s  t h roughou t  t h e  d e f e n c e  

i s  t h a t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  c o n t r i b u t e d  t o  t h i s  a c c i d e n t  by h i s  own 

neg l igence .  Exces s ive  speed and f a i l i n g  t o  keep a  p rope r  look-out  

a r e  t h e  founda t i on  o f  t h e  a l l e g a t i o n s .  

Having found t h a t  t h e r e  was a  mound o f  e a r t h  and an open 

t r e n c h  i n  t h e  roadway w i t h o u t  any warning s i g n s ,  I now t a k e  a  c l o s e r  



look  a t  t h e  manner i n  which t h e  p l a i n t i f f  was d r i v i n g .  Was he  

d r i v i n g  a t  a n  e x c e s s i v e  speed i n  a l l  t h e  c i r cums t ances?  The 

p l a i n t i f f ' s  ev idence  i s  t h a t  he  was t r a v e l l i n g  a t  a  speed o f  

30 m i l e s  p e r  hour  when he  saw t h e  mound o f  e a r t h .  H e  a p p l i e d  

h i s  b r a k e s  when h e  w-as 20 f e e t  away from t h e  mound which i n  e f f e c t  

slowed t h e  v e h i c l e  t o  a  speed  o f  less t h a n  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour .  The 

road  was s t r a i g h t .  H e  swerved from t h e  mound and went i n t o  t h e  

open t r e n c h  8" deep .  I t  i s  a t  t h i s  p o i n t  t h a t  h e  s a i d  he  was 

thrown from h i s  s e a t ,  t h e r e b y  l o s i n g  c o n t r o l  o f  t h e  v e h i c l e .  H e  

admibted t h a t  t h e  v e h c i l e  was equipped w i t h  s e a t  b e l t s  b u t  a t  t h e  t ime  

he  was n o t  wear ing any.  H e  a l s o  admi t t ed  t h a t  t h e  purpose  o f  t h e  

s e a t  b e l t  i s  t o  r educe  t h e  chance  o f  be ing  thrown from h i s  s e a t  

i n  t h e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  he  d e s c r i b e d .  H e  s a i d  f u r t h e r  t h a t  a f t e r  

e n t e r i n g  t h e  t r e n c h  t h e  v e h i c l e  went a c r o s s  t h e  road  h i t  a  c u r b  

w a l l  and t r a v e l l e d  100 f e e t  b e f o r e  end ing  up i n  t h e  l i g h t  p o s t .  

The v e h i c l e  was n o t  under  a c c e l e r a t i o n  a f t e r  go ing  1nLo t h e  

t r e n c h  a s  he  was t h e n  o u t  o f  t h e  s e a t .  The r e s u l t  i s  t h a t  t h e  

v e h i c l e  was e x t e n s i v e l y  damaged and he  s u f f e r e d  s e r i o u s  i n j u r i e s .  

H e  a d m i t t e d  t h a t  t h e  v e h i c l e  i s  a  4 wheel  d r i v e  s p o r t s  

u t i l i t y  t y p e  which h a s  a  ground c l e a r a n c e  of  9 " ,  which i s  h i g h e r  

t h a n  a  r e g u l a r  s edan  motor c a r , .  

H e  d en i ed  t h a t  h e  was d r i v i n g  a t  speed f a r  i n  e x c e s s  o f  30 m i l e s  

pe r  hour  and t h a t  h e  had no p rope r  c o n t r o l  over  h i s  v e h i c l e .  

H e  a l s o  den i ed  t h a t  a f t e r  t r a v e l l i n g  100 f e e t  from t h e  t r e n c h  

h i s  v e h i c l e  "washed" and went a c r o s s  t h e  road  end ing  up i n  t h e  

l i g h t  p o l e .  D r .  Vaughn who gave ev idence  on t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  
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C 'I behalf said that Mr. Dayes, the plaintiff gave him a history of 

how the accident happeied. He said he told him that his vehicle 

ran off the road and "washed" into a light post. Dr. ~aughn's 
I 

reports dated February 1995 and November 17, 1998, exhibits 1 I 

l 

and 13 respectively, referred to the report made by the plaintiff I 

that "...... he was the driver of the vehicle which "washed" into 1 

a lightpost." I accept Dr. Vaughn's account and find that the 

plaintiff was not speaking the truth when he denied having said so. (--, I 

I </ 
Dr. Vauhgn also agreed to the suggestion that the , 

injuries he saw to the head of the plaintiff were consistent with 
--  - 

someone sitting in front of the vehicle and crashing into the 

lightpole. I accept Dr. Vaughn's opinion and reject the evidence ~ 
of the plaintiff that he was thrown from his seat. I find that 

when he entered the trench he was still seated around the steering 

wheel and should have had control of his vehicle. 

c-a To determine the speed at which the plaintiff was 

travelling there being no evidence other than that coming from 

the plaintiff, regard must be taken of the extent of the damage 

to the vehicle. It was a total write-off, is a clear indication 

that there was a severe impact. The question to be answered is 

this. Could a vehicle travelling at a speed of less than 30 miles 

per hour over a distance of 100 feet without acceleration on a 

level stretch of road and ending up in a light pole have caused 

c. the sort of damage to which the motor vehicle assessor speaks? 



i' The damage t o  t h e  v e h i c l e  i n c l u d e s  i t e m s  such a s  s e v e r e  damage t o  

t h e  c h a s i s ,  damaged d a s h / i n s t r u m e n t  p a n e l  c o n s o l e ,  s t e e r i n g  wheel ,  

bumper, r a d i a t o r ,  e n g i n e  mount t o  name a  few (see e x h i b i t  11). 

The answer t o  t h e  q u e s t i o n  posed i s  a n  u n i q u i v o c a l  "no."  I t  

i s  i n c o n v e i v a b l e  t h a t  t r a v e l l i n g  a t  a  speed o f  less t h a n  30 m i l e s  

p e r  hour  such  e x t e n s i v e  damage cou ld  have r e s u l t e d  when it ended 

i n  t h e  l i g h t p o s t .  I conc lude  on a  b a l a n c e  of p r o b a b i l i t i e s  t h a t  

C t h e  washing D r .  Vaughn r e f e r r e d  t o ,  was caused  by t h e  p l a i n t i f f  

d r i v i n g  a t  a n  e x c e s s i v e  speed  aAd r e s u l t i n g  i n  h i s  f a i l u r e  t o  

have any o r  any p r o p e r  c o n t r o l  o v e r  h i s  v e h i c l e .  I t  i s  o f  n o t e  

t h a t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  was u n a b l e  t o  s t o p  h i s  v e h i c l e  w i t h i n  a  d i s t a n c e  

o f  100 f e e t  d r i v i n g  a t  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour .  

I n  t h e  9 t h  e d i t i o n  o f  Bingham's Motor Claims Cases ,  

t h e  t a b l e s  g i v e  t h e  o v e r a l l  s t o p p i n g  d i s t a n c e  of  a  motor v e h i c l e  

t r a v e l l i n g  a t  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour  i n  p e r f e c t  c o n d i t i o n s  i s  7 5  f e e t .  

.. What t h e n  accoun t s  f o r  t h e  e x t r a  25 f e e t  i n  which he shou ld  have 

s t opped  b e a r i n g  i n  mind t h a t  t h e  v e h i c l e  was i n  a  slowing-down 

p r o c e s s ?  Here a g a i n  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  was less t h a n  t r u t h f u l  when 

he s a i d  he  was t r a v e l l i n g  a t  less t h a n  30 m i l e s  p e r  hour  - I 

re jec t  h i s  ev idence  on t h i s .  

Another  f a c t o r  t h a t  must be  cons ide r ed  i s  h i s  ev idence  

t h a t  t h e  a r e a  was d a r k  and n o t  i l l u m i n a t e d ,  y e t  he  was d r i v i n g  

on h i s  dim l i g h t s  which h a s  a  range  o f  40 f e e t  and he  o n l y  saw 

t h e  mound when he was 20 f e e t  away from it. I would have 

t hough t  t h a t  f o r  h i s  own s a f e t y  he would have been d r i v i n g  on 



. h i s  b r i g h t  l i g h t s  g iven  t h e  l i g h t i n g  cond i t i on  a t  t h e  t ime.  

" I n  o r d e r  t o  e s t a b l i s h  t h e  defence  
of  c o n t r i b u t o r y  negl igence t h e  
de fendan t  must prove,  f i r s t ,  t h a t  
t h e  p l a i n t i f f  f a i l e d  t o  t a k e  
' o r d i n a r y  c a r e  of  h imse l f '  o r ,  
i n  o t h e r  words, such c a r e  a s ' a  
r ea sonab le  man would t a k e  f o r  
h i s  own s a f e t y ,  and secondly,  
t h a t  h i s  f a i l u r e  t o  t a k e  c a r e  
was a  c o n t r i b u t o r y  cause  of t h e  
a c c i d e n t .  " 

This  exp res s ion  i s  t o  be found i n  t h e  ca se  of  L e w i s  

v D e n y e  ( 1 9 3 9 )  1KB540,  per P a r c q  L.J. I f i n d  t h a t  t h e  

p l a i n t i f f  f a i l e d  t o  t a k e  c a r e  and t h i s  was a  c o n t r i b u t o r y  cause  

of  t h e  a c c i d e n t ,  and t h e r e f o r e  i s  c o n t r i b u t o r i l y  n e g l i g e n t .  

The defence  has  succeeded i n  e s t a b l i s h i n g  c o n t r i b u t o r y  neg l igence .  

L i a b i l i t y  

I t  i s  now l e f t  t o  be decided which of  t h e  defendant  

and o r  defendants  a r e  l i a b l e .  The a c t u a l  o r  p h y s i c a l  work on t h e  

s i t e  was c a r r i e d  o u t  by t h e  f i f t h  defendant  and l i a b i l i t y  i s  

t h e r e f o r e  a t t a c h e d  t o  them a s  p r i n c i p a l s .  The t h i r d  defendant  

B a s i l  James has  admi t ted  t h a t  t h e  excava t ion  work was done by 

B a s i l  James Cons t ruc t ion  and Plumbing S e r v i c e s  L td . ,  t h e  f i f t h  

de fendan t ,o f  which he i s  t h e  managing d i r e c t o r .  The workmen were 

employed by h i s  company. The f i f t h  defendants  a r e  t h e r e f o r e  

v i c a r i o u s l y  l i a b l e  f o r  t h e  neg l igence  of t h e i r  s e r v a n t s ,  t h e  

workers.  I a l s o  f i n d  t h a t  B a s i l  James a s  managing d i r e c t o r  was 

a c t i n g  on beha l f  of t h e  f i f t h  defendant ,  and he would n o t  be 

p e r s o n a l l y  l i a b l e  i n  neg l igence .  



A s  r e g a r d s  t h e  f i r s t  d e f e n d a n t ,  h e  h a s  a d m i t t e d  b e i n g  

a c o n s u l t a n t  and t h e  managing d i r e c t o r  o f  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  

A .  Chong Ltd .  which i s  p r o v i d e s  d e s i g n s  o f  w a t e r  p o l l u t i o n ,  w a t e r  

s u p p l y ,  plumbing, d r a i n a g e  and mechan ica l  s e r v i c e s  f o r  b u i l d i n g .  

I f i n d  t h a t  h i s  n e g o t i a t i o n s  w i t h  t h e  6 t h  d e f e n d a n t  was i n  a 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  c a p a c i t y  o f  t h e  2nd d e f e n d a n t .  Any n e g l i g e n c e  

a r i s i n g  o u t  o f  t h e s e  t r a n s a c t i o n s ,  w o u l d n o t  make him p e r s o n a l l y  

l i a b l e .  The 2nd d e f e n d a n t  would be  v i c a r i o u s l y  l i a b l e  i n  t h i s  

r e g a r d .  What w a s  t h e  r o l e  o f  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t ?  The f i r s t  

d e f e n d a n t  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  a t  a l l  m a t e r i a l  

t i m e s  w a s  a c t i n g  i n  a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  c a p a c i t y  p u r s u a n t  t o  a n  

a p p l i c a t i o n  t o  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  f o r  s e r v i c e s .  H e  d e n i e d  

engaging t h e  s e r v i c e s  o f  t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t  t o  c a r r y  o u t  t h e  

work. H e  c o n t e n d s  t h a t  t h e  r o l e  o f  t h e  seond d e f e n d a n t  was no 

more t h a n  t h a t  o f  a c o n s u l t a n t  t o  t h e  d e v e l o p e r  and as i t s  a g e n t  

f o r  t h e  sewer main. The u n c o n t r o v e r t e d  e v i d e n c e  o f  B a s i l  James i s  
~ ~ 

t h a t  h i s  company t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t  was employed by t h e  second  

d e f e n d a n t  i n  t h e  c o n s t r u c t i o n  o f  a  sewerage  sys tem on Musgrave 

Avenue. H i s  e v i d e n c e  was never  c h a l l e n g e d  i n  c r o s s - e x a m i n a t i o n .  

However payments f o r  t h i s  were made d i r e c t l y  by S u r r e y  C o n s t r u c t i o n  

L td .  a s  a l s o  payments f o r  d e s i g n i n g  and s u p e r v i s o n  f e e s .  Al though 

t h e  second d e f e n d a n t s  r o u t i n e l y  c o p i e d  c o r r e s p o n d e n c e  w i t h  t h e  

s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  and S u r r e y  C o n s t r u c t i o n  L td .  I f i n d  as a  f a c t  

t h a t  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  employed t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t  t o  c a r r y  

o u t  t h e  l a y i n g  o f  t h e  sewerage  mains e x e r c i s i n g  p a r t  two of  



o p t i o n  con t a ined  i n  l e t t e r  d a t e d  23rd  December 1994 ( E x h i b i t  391. 
. . 

There i s  no ev idence  t h a t  t h e  s i x t h  de f endan t  employed o r  c o n t r a c t e d  

w i t h  t h e  f i f t h  de f endan t  t o  c a r r y  o u t  t h e s e  works,and a c c o r d i n g l y ,  

I f i n d  t h a t  no c o n t r a c t  e x i s t e d  between t h e  f i f t h  and s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t s  

i n  t h i s  r ega rd .  

What t h e n  i s  t h e  r o l e  of  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t ?  By 

l e t t e r  o f  t h e  2 9 t h  J u l y  1994. ( E x h i b i t  26) t h e  N a t i o n a l  Water 
/ t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t ,  

Commission under took t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  d e s i g n i n g  and c o n s t r u c t i n g  

t h e  sewer t r u n k ,  t h e  c o s t  o f  t h e  d e s i g n  be ing  $20,000 which was 

subsequen t l y  p a i d .  The s i x t h  de f endan t  t h e r e a f t e r  s u b m i t t e d  an 

e s t i m a t e  f o r  $443,682 from t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t .  

By l e t t e r  d a t e d  23rd  December, 1994, ( s u p r a )  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  

wro te  t o  t h e  f i r s t  and second d e f e n d a n t s  g i v i n g  them t h e  o p t i o n  

o f  ( a )  paying t h e  N a t i o n a l  Water Commission f o r  t h e  comple t ion  

(2) of  t h e  job ,  o r  ( b ) ,  pay t h e  N a t i o n a l  Water Commission $26,000 f o r  

s u p e r v i s i o n  f e e  and employ a  c o n t r a c t o r  a c c e p t a b l e  t o  t h e  N a t i o n a l  

Water Commission. 

The s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  was never  p a i d  t h e  sum asked  f o r  

doing t h e  job ,  i n  f a c t  it was t h e  f i f t h  de f endan t  t h a t  d i d  it. 

The second de f endan t  hav ing  e x e r c i s e d  o p t i o n  two o f  t h e  l e t t e r  

e x h i b i t  9 ,  a l r e a d y  r e f e r r e d  t o ,  and t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  having 

admi t t ed  be ing  p a i d  t h e  $26,000 by S u r r e y  C o n s t r u c t i o n  L td .  f o r  

c11 whom t h e  second d e f e n d a n t s  a r e  c o n s u l t a n t s ,  t h e n  t h e  s i x t h  

de f en dan t  i s  o b l i g e d  t o  c a r r y  o u t  t h e i r  promise ,  t h a t  i s ,  t o  

" s u p e r v i s e  t h e  job  s o  a s  t o  e n s u r e  it mee ts  t h e  N a t i o n a l  w a t e r  
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' Commission s t a n d a r d s . "  M r .  Haughton i n  h i s  e v i d e n c e  s a i d  t h a t  he  

v i s i t e d  t h e  s i t e  app rox ima te ly  s i x  t i m e s  between t h e  6 t h  t o  t h e  

28 th  J anua ry  1995; h e  f i r s t  v i s i t  b e ing  on t h e  6 t h .  H e  v i s i s t e d  

twice on t h e  1 3 t h  and when h e  was l e a v i n g  a t  5:30 p.m. t h a t  day 

h i s  s u p e r v i s o r y  r o l e  he  shou ld  have s e e n  t h a t  t h e  s i t e  was l e f t  

i n  a  s a f e  c o n d i t i o n  and t h a t  no o b s t r u c t i o n  would be  l e f t  i n  t h e  

(-,! 
roadway s o  a s  t o  c r e a t e  a  dange r  t o  p e r s o n s  u s i n g  it. 

The Law 

I t  i s  w e l l  e s t a b l i s h e d  a s  a  g e n e r a l  r u l e  o f  law t h a t  
- -  

an employer i s  n o t  l i a b l e  f o r  t h e  a c t s  o f  h i s  i ndependen t  c o n t r a c t o r  

i n  t h e  same way a s  he  i s  l i a b l e  f o r  t h e  a c t s  o f  h i s  s e r v a n t s  o r  

a g e n t s  even though t h e s e  a c t s  a r e  done i n  c a r r y i n g  o u t  t h e  work 

f o r  h i s  b e n e f i t  under  t h e  c o n t r a c t .  The d e t e r m i n a t i o n  whe ther  t h e  

a c t u a l  wrongdoer i s  a s e r v a n t  o r  a g e n t  on t h e  one  hand o r  an  

C independen t  c o n t r a c t o r  on t h e  o t h e r  depends on whe ther  o r  n o t  t h e  

employer n o t  on ly  d e t e r m i n e s  what  i s  t o  be  done,  b u t  r e t a i n s  t h e  

c o n t r o l  o f  t h e  a c t u a l  performance i n  which c a s e  t h e  d o e r  i s  a  

s e r v a n t  o r  a g e n t ;  b u t  i f  t h e  employer,  w h i l e  p r e s c r i b i n g  t h e  

work t o  be done,  l e a v e s  t h e  manner -o f  d o i n g  it t o  t h e  d o e r ,  t h e  

l a t t e r  i s  an independen t  c o n t r a c t o r .  

I t  was s a i d  by Lord Blackburn i n  D a l t o n  v Angus (1881)  6AC740 

"Even s i n c e  Quarman v B u r n e t t  it 
h a s  been c o n s i d e r e d  s e t t l e d  law 
t h a t  one employing a n o t h e r  i s  n o t  
l i a b l e  f o r  h i s  c o l l a t e r a l  
n e g l i g e n c e  u n l e s s  t h e  r e l a t i o n  o f  
m a s t e r  and s e r v a n t  e x i s t  between 
them. So t h a t  a  pe r son  employing 



a contractor to do work is not 
liable for the negligence of. 
that contractor or his servants. 
On the other hand, a person 
causing something to be done, 
the doing of which casts upon 
him a duty, cannot escape from 
the responsibility attaching on 
him of seeing that duty performed 
by delegating it to a contractor. 
He may bargain with the contractor 
that he shall perform the duty and 
stipulate for an indemnity from 
him if it is not performed, but 
he cannot thereby releive himself 
from liability of those injured 
by failure to perform it." 

In the case ofGeorge Martin Hughes and John Perci~al 

(1883)  8AC443 the appellant and respondents were owners of adjoining 

houses between which was a party-wall, the property of both. The 

appellants' house also adjoins B's house and between them was a 

party-wall. The appellant employed a builder to pull down his 

house and rebuild it on a plan which involved, the trying together 
f "- \ 
L '  of the new house and the party-wall between it and the respondent's 

house, so that if one fell the other would be damaged. In the 

course of the rebuilding, the builder's workmen in fixing a staircase, 

negligently and without the knowledge of the appellant, cut into the 

party-wall between the appelants' house and B's house, in consequence 

of which the appellants' house fell, and the wall dragged over the 

party-wall between it and the respondent's house and injured the 

respondent's house. The cutting into the party-wall was not 
(-- -\ 

[-,,.' authorised by the contract between the appellant and the builder. 

It was held by the Privy Council that: 



"The law casts a duty upon the 
appellant to see that reasonable 
care and skill were exercised in 
the operations which involved a 
use of the party-wall belonging 
to himself and the respondent 
.exposing it to the risk 
above-mentioned, and that the 
appellant could not.get rid 
of responsibility be delegating 
the performance to a third person, 
and was liable to the respondent 
for the injury to his house" 
(emphasis mine) 

In the case of Holliday v National Telephone Co. (1899) 

2QB392, where a passerby on the highway was injured through the 

negligence of a plumber engaged by the defendant company under an 

independent contract, it was held that the defendant company were liable 

Smith J in his judgment said:- 

"The plaintiff sued the defendants 
for damages and the defendants set 
up the defence that they had employed 
an independent contractor to do the 
work and therefore were not liable. 
I am of the opinion that according 
to the principles established in 
Hughes v Pervival and Black v 
Christdurch Finance Co. (2), where 
a person is executing work upon a 
public highway, he cannot escape 
liability by employing an 
independent contractor because 
there is a duty cast upon him to 
see that the work upon the highway 
is so carried out as not to injure 
persons who are using the highway." 

These principles of law were further endorsed in the 

case of Penny v Winibeldon Urban District Council & Anor. (1899) 

QBD and which is strongly relied on as being pari aateria with 



n e g l i g e p c e .  S e s s l e r  L J  i n  t h e  C o u r t  o f  Appeal  s a i d : -  

"The d e c i s i o n  i n  t h i s  c a s e ,  i n  
o u r  judgment,  d o e s  n o t  depend 
m e r e l y  on  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  
d e f e n d a n t s  w e r e  d o i n g  work on 
t h e  highway, b u t  p r i m a r i l y  on  
i t s  dangerous  c h a r a c t e r ,  which 
imposes  on  t h e  u l t i m a t e  
employers  a n  o b l i g a t i o n  t o  
t a k e  s p e c i a l  p r e c a u t i o n s ,  and 
t h e y  c a n n o t  d e l e g a t e  t h i s  
o b l i g a t i o n  by hav ing  t h e  work 
c a r r i e d  o u t  by a n  i n d e p e n d e n t  
c o n t r a c t o r .  T h i s  i s  e q u a l l y  
t r u e  when t h e  work b e i n g  done 
by t h e  i n d e p e n d e n t  c o n t r a c t o r  
f o r  t h e  u l t i m a t e  employer  i s  
b e i n g  done on a n o t h e r  p e r s o n ' s  
p r e m i s e s . "  

I t  i s  a b u n d a n t l y  c l e a r  from t h e  above a u t h o r i t i e s ,  t h a t  

a  p e r s o n  d o i n g  work on a  p u b l i c  highway c a n n o t  e s c a p e  l i a b l i l i t y  

by employing an  i n d e p e n d e n t  c o n t r a c t o r .  I f  a n  employer  who h a s  

t o  pe r fo rm a  d u t y  imposed on him by s t a t u t e  o r  common law,  makes 

a  c o n t r a c t  w i t h  an  i n d e p e n d e n t  c o n t r a c t o r  f o r  t h e  performance  

o f  t h a t  d u t y ,  i n s t e a d  o f  d o i n g  it h i m s e l f ,  he i s  l i a b l e  f o r  

t h e  n e g l i g e n c e  o f  t h e  i n d e p e n d e n t  c o n t r a c t o r  i n  c a r r y i n g  it o u t .  

The f i r s t  and second  d e f e n d a n t s  c a n n o t  t h e r e f o r e  i n  

t h e s e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  r e l y  on  t h e  d e f e n c e  t h a t  t h e y  a r e  n o t  l i a b l e  

on  t h e  b a s i s  t h a t  t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t s  were i n d e p e n d e n t  c o n t r a c t o r s .  

Where a  s t a t u r o r y  a u t h o r i t y  h a s  power t o  do  something 

t o  a  r o a d  which i n v o l v e s  s t o p p i n g  it, o r  t o  d o  something t o  it 

which w i l l  make it dangerous  w h i l e  it i s  b e i n g  done,  t h e r e  i s  

a  d u t y  c a s t  upon them t o  t a k e  c a r e  t h a t  p e r s o n  a r e  n o t  i n j u r e d  by 

any c a r e l e s s n e s s  i n  t h e  d o i n g  o f  t h a t  which h a s  t o  b e  done - 



I 
I 

(See Penny v Wimbledon supra). 
.; ~ 

The s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  a d m i t t e d  t h a t  t h e y  gave  p e r m i s s i o n  ! 
t o  t h e  f i r s t  and second d e f e n d a n t s  t o  e x e c u t e  t h e  works. I n  t h e i r  1 

d e f e n c e ,  t h e y  p l e a d e d  t h a t  t h e i r  a c t u a l  r o l e  as  r e g a r d s  t h e  connec t i6n  i 

o f  t h e  sewer main w a s  l i m i t e d  t o  t h e  examina t ion  o f  t h e  l a y i n g  o f  I 
I 

t h e  sewer mains and b u i l d i n g  materials t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  such  works 1 

['- \i were u n d e r t a k e n  t o  t h e i r  s p e c i f i c a t i o n s  and f u r t h e r ,  t h a t  t h e y  
I 
I 

were n o t  i n v o l v e d  i n  n o r  r e s p o n s i b l e  f o r  t h e  r e s u r f a c i n g  and o r  

s t a b i l i z a t i o n  o f  t h e  roadway o r  any r o a d  works a t  a l l .  

K r .  Haughton i n  h i s  e v i d e n c e  s t a t e d  t h a t .  

" A t  t h e  end of  t h e  c o n s t r u c t i o n ,  
t h e  works became t h e  p r o p e r t y  o f  
t h e  N a t i o n a l  Water Commission. 
I t  s e r v i c e s  o t h e r  a r e a s  a p a r t  
from t h e  l o t  f o r  which it w a s  
b u i l t .  The N a t i o n a l  Water 
Commission c h a r g e s  f o r  t h a t  
s e r v i c e .  " 

t.- C l e a r l y  t h e  work which was on t h e  p u b l i c  highway was 

done f o r  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t  and t h e  p a r t i c u l a r  p r e m i s e s  a t  No. 4 

Musgrave Avenue t o  which a  c o n n e c t i o n  w a s  made would b e  mere ly  one  

of any number of  p r i v a t e  l o t s  t o  o b t a i n  s imi la r  s e r v i c e s  from t h e  
\. 

N a t i o n a l  Water Commission from t h e  same main. I t  w a s  t h e  s i x t h  

d e f e n d a n t  t h a t  approved t h e  l a y i n g  of  t h e  sewer mains .  

The p r o v i s i o n s  of  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Water Commission A c t  

/? l empowers t h e  commission t o  c a r r y  o u t  c e r t a i n  works on  t h e  highway 

which would o t h e r w i s e  be  u n l a w f u l .  S e c t i o n  4 ( 2 )  ( g )  r e a d s : -  

For  t h e  purposes  of  s u b s e c t i o n  1 
t h e  Commissioner may .... s u b j e c t  
t o  such  n o t i c e  t o  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  



redu~tion ..... involves a 
consideration not only of the 

causative potency of a 

particular factor but also of 

it blameworthiness." 

In the case of Stamley v Gypsum Mines Ltd. (1953) 

<---, AC663 Lord Reid said. 

"A court must deal broadly with 
the problem of apportionment and 
in considering what is just and 
equitable must have regard to 
the blameworthiness -of each -party, 
but the claimant's share in the 
responsibility for the damage 
cannot, I think, be assessed 
without considering the relative 
importance of his acts in causing 
the damage apart from his 
blameworthiness." 

In the instant case, having considered all the 
.,, <-- ' circumstances I am of the view that negligence on part of the 

plaintiff was one of the causes of the accident. Had he been 

keeping a proper look-out and driving at a speed in keeping with 

the lighting conditions which existed at the time, the accident 

might have been averted, or if not, the extent of the damage 

to his vehicle and his personal injuries would have been 

considerably lessened. However, the blameworthiness attached to the 

plaintiff in all the circumstances does not exceed that of the 
/--- 

C. I defendant and/or defendants. Applying the above tests. I would 

apportion blameworthiness,in the plaintiff as being 25% and that 

of the defendants to be 758. 



-ASSESSMENT-OF DAMAGES 

GENERAL DAMAGES 

The plaintiff was admitted to the University of The 

West Indies Hospital on the 14th January 1995. He was treated ~ 
/- I 

L I 

by Dr. Kenneth Vaughn an orthopaedic consultant who found him to 
I 

be suffering from the following injuries: - , 

1. Fracture of the 3rd & 4th ribs posteriorily. - I  

2. Comminuted fracture of the posterior acetabulum I 

with a fracture of the head of the left femur. 

3. Posterior dislocation of the left hip joint. 

4. Multiple abrasions to the left side of the face and I 

a 6' cm laceration to the left fronto-parietal region 

of the scalp. 

5. There was an abrasion to the right knee an a laceration 

to the front of the left upper leg. 

6. Tenderness in the left chest posteriorily. 

7. Considerable pain in the left hip. 

He was placed on skeletal traction pending surgery. 

He was mobolised on crutches, non-weight bearing and not allowed 

C to sit. He was subsequently transferred to the Orthopaedic 



Associates Hospital in the U.S.A. under the care of Gary 

Moskovitz an Orthopaedic Surgeon. He arrived there on the 

10th February 1995 in a precarious and debilitated condition. 

In May 1996 a total hip replacement was done. The recovery is 

slow and tedious due to damage to the left hip and surrounding 

tissues. He has suffered permanent impairment, disability and 
/= - 

paid. He will require future surgerys on his left hip and the 

hip arthroplasty will cost from 10 to 15 years at which time he 

will require a revision of the total hip arthroplasty. As a 

result of the wasting, limb length di~crepancy~pain, limitation 

of movement and loosening of the prosthesis, he has an impairment 

of the -lower extremity amounting to 75% which equates to 30% of 

the whole person. 

I accept the plaintiff's evidence which documents 

C b-. ', the continuing and excruciating pains suffered by him which are 

considerable and cannot be ameliorated. I am satisfied from 

his evidence and the medical reports tendered that his loss 

of ameneties are extensive and his suffering will continue 

almost unabated. 

For pain and suffering and loss of ameneties, Dr. 

Manderson-Jones relied on the unreported case of Jancie Forrest 

v Ottman Todd S.C. CLF103/96 as a guide to assessment. In this 

case the plaintiff suffered broadly similar injuries and was 

awarded $2M in December 1997, which when converted to today's 

value amounts to $3M. 
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  either Messrs Goffe nor Lyttle addressed the question 

of general damages in so far as itrelates to pain and suffering 

and loss of ameneties. Mr. Earle in his submission referred to 

the case of Wade McKoy v Hilda Beckford - Suit CL.l984/M-396 
where the injuries are dissimilar to those of the plaintiffs. 

Of note that the permanent disability was only 14% of the whole 

person. An award of $60,000 was made on the 4th October 1990, 

when converted to today amounts to $455,611.65. Also submitted 

is the case of Terrence Lawrence v Ernest Young and Donald Young . - 

- Suit No C.L.l984/Y-181 where again the injuries were dissimilar 

to those of the plaintiffs. His permanent partial disability was 

put at 15% to 20% and an award of $70,000 was made, converted 

to today's value amounts to $676,917.69. Another case cited 

was that of E r i c  Buchanan v Elias Blake Suit No SCCA 2 of 1993 

where the injury concerned the fracture of the right sacro-iliac 

joint with dislocation where the permanent partial disability 

was 12% and needing a total hip replacement an award of $400,000 

was made in October 1992 and when converted to today's value 

amounts to $1,138,476.4. 

This last case cited is the nearest comparison with 

the plaintiff's. However the permanent partial disability is 

far less than that of the plaintiff. 

Given the extent of the plaintiff's injuries and the 

accompanying suffering and wide loss of ameneties, I regard the 



sum o f  $2.5M a s  r e a s o n a b l e  i n  a l l  t h e  c i r c u m s t a n c e s .  An award o f  

$2.5M i s  a c c o r d i n g l y  made f o r  p a i n  and s u f f e r i n g  and l o s s  o f  a m e n e t i e s .  

Loss  o f  f u t u r e  e a r n i n q  
. . 

Here t h e  p l a i n t i f f  i s  a s k i n g  f o r  an  award o f  $1.2M 

under  t h i s  head.  T h i s  i s  based on t h e  f a c t  t h a t  h e  i s  53 y e a r s  

o l d  and t h i n k s  he  h a s  s e v e r a l  working y e a r s  ahead o f  him. H e  

c a l c u l a t e s  h i s  l o s s  a t  $100,000 p e r  y e a r  f o r  a  p e r i o d  o f  t w e l v e  

y e a r s .  There  i s  no e v i d e n c e  a s  t o  how he  a r r i v e d  a t  t h i s  

. - f i g u r e  a l s o  no e v i d e n c e  o f  h i s  e a r n i n g s .  - 

T h i s  a r e a  o f  c l a i m  i s  v i g o r o u s l y  c h a l l e n g e d  by Messrs 

L y t t l e  and E a r l e .  The p l a i n t i f f ' s  e v i d e n c e  i s  t h a t  h e  owns companies 

i n  t h e  a u t o - p a r t s  b u s i n e s s ,  one i n  Jamaica  and t h e  o t h e r  i n  

F l o r i d a ,  U.S.A. o f  which he  i s  t h e  managing d i r e c t o r .  H e  h a s  

n o t  g i v e n  any e v i d e n c e  t o  t h e  e f f e c t  t h a t  b o t h  b u s i n e s s e s  o r  

e i t h e r  o f  them had t o  b e  c l o s e d  o r  s c a l e d  down i n  any way w h i l s t  

h e  was h o s p i t a l i z e d  o r  a t  any t i m e  w h i l s t  r e c u p e r a t i n g  a f t e r  

t h e  a c c i d e n t .  No e v i d e n c e  i s  g i v e n  o f  h i s  income h e r e  o r  i n  

t h e  U.S.A. I t  would t h e r e f o r e  b e  s p e c u l a t i v e  t o  u s e  t h e  f i g u r e  

s u b m i t t e d  w i t h o u t  p r o o f .  There  i s  a l s o  no e v i d e n c e  t h a t  t h e  

p l a i n t i f f s '  e a r n i n g  c a p a c i t y  h a s  been a f f e c t e d  because  o f  t h e  

a c c i d e n t .  The c l a i m  under  t h i s  head i s  unsuppor ted ,  and i s  

d i s a l l o w e d .  

S p e c i a l  damages 

Medica l  expenses  

I have found t h e  f o l l o w i n g  c l a i m s  t o  b e  proven,  and n o t  



' resisted by the defence and which amounts to $181,750.00. 

1. ~ospital bill - $110,450; Dr. Vaughn's fees $36,500; 
anaesthetics fees $12000; crutches $1,800; physiotheraphy $21,000. 

cost of treatment in the U.S.A. is opposed. The evidence however, 

is that the plaintiff lives with his wife and family in Florida 

U.S.A. albeit he has interest in Jamaica - He could have received 
treatment here in Jamaica with the cost somewhat less, but I 

find it reasona~le to have his treatment done in the area 

where access to his home and family is readily available and 
- - 

would be more amenable to his healing process. I do not find 

it unreasonable for the plaintiff to have travelled to Florida 

from Jamaica by means of air-ambulance. In the circumstances 

an award is made for medical-related expenses in the U.S.A. 

as follows:- 

C;; Air ambulance US$5,500; hospital bill for hip 
~. . - 

replacement $US#,844.32; surgeons fees US$8,695.70; Health 

South Rehabilitation US$5,867.46; Cigma miscellaneous payments 

US$1,941.51 amounting to US$25,498.63 

Future Medical expenses 

Dr. Vaughn's evidence is that primary hip replacements 

last for approximately 10 years. Revisions however, have a 

shorter life span of about 5 years. Given the plaintiff's age, 

I would allow for two revisions and not three as suggested by 

Dr. Manderson-Jones and one by Mr. Lyttle. Messrs Lyttle and 



a 

Daley submi t  t h a t  f u r t u r e  p r o s t h e s i s  shou ld  b e  done i n  Jamaica  

which would b e  less c o s t l y  t h e r e b y  m i t i g a t i n g  t h e  damages. 

However, I am c o g n i z a n t  o f  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  f a m i l y  

home i s  i n  F l o r i d a  and which makes it less burdensome and less 

i n c o n v e n i e n t  f o r  him t o  have t h i s  dohe i n  F l o r i d a .  I n  t h e  

c i r c u m s t a n c e s  I w i l l  make a n  award f o r  t h e  c o s t s  o f  2 h i p  

(.- 
r e v i s i o n s  t o  b e  done i n  F l o r i d a  t h e  c o s t  o f  which i s  US$30,000 

'L/ o f  e a c h  r e v i s i o n  making a  t o t a l  of  $60,000.  

Motor v e h i c l e  
- 

The p a l i n t i f f  h a s  c la imed t h e  sum o f  $475,000 

r e p r e s e n t i n g  t h e  w r i t t e n - o f f  v a l u e  f o  t h e  damaged v e h i c l e .  The 

a s s e s s o r ' s  r e p o r t  e x h i b i t  11 makes t h i s  amount $450,000.  Messrs 

L y t t l e  & E a r l e  b o t h  submit  t h a t  t h i s  c l a i m  and t h a t  f o r  l o s s  o f  

u s e  by t h e  p l a i n t i f f  s h o u l d  b e  d i s a l l o w e d  on t h e  grounds  t h a t : -  

( a )  t h e  motor v e h i c l e  i s  owned by Daytona S a l e s  Co. L t d .  

( b )  t h a t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f ,  a  t h i r d  p a r t y ,  c a n n o t  s u e  on 

b e h a l f  of  Daytona S a l e s  L t d ,  n o r ,  

( c )  c a n  h e  do s o  i n  h i s  own r i g h t .  

The answer i s  t o  be  found i n  t h e  c a s e  of The W i n k f i e l d  

( 1 9 0 2 )  C.A. 85LT668 where C o l l i n s  MR. i n  h i s  judgment s a i d .  

" . . . . . t h e  law i s  t h a t  i n  an  
a c t i o n  a g a i n s t  a  s t r a n g e r  f o r  
l o s s  of goods caused by h i s  
n e g l i g e n c e ,  t h e  b a i l e e  i n  
p o s s e s s i o n  can  r e c o v e r  t h e  
v a l u e  of t h e  goods,  a l t h o u g h  
h e  would have had a good 
answer t o  an a c t i o n  by t h e  
b a i l o r  f o r  damages f o r  t h e  
l o s s  o f  t h e  t h i n g  b a i l e d . "  



I n  t h e  i n s t a n t  c a s e  t h e  ev idence  is  t h a t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  ~ 
I 

i s  a  d i r e c t o r  o f  Daytona S a l e s  Ltd.  and a s  such  was t h e  b a i l e e  of  

t h e  motor v e h i c l e  a t  t h e  t i m e  o f  t h e  a c c i d e n t .  

I n  h i s  c a p a c i t y  a s  such he  can  p r o p e r l y  make t h i s  c l a i m  

a s  he  ha s  s o  done. An award o f  $450,000 is a c c o r d i n g l y  made: 1 
Loss o f  u s e  o f  motor v e h i c l e  

. I t  i s  r e a s o n a b l e  t h a t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  would need t o  

r e p l a c e  h i s  damaged v e h i c l e  and i n  t h i s  r e g a r d  t o  have one d u r i n g  
. - 

t h e  i n t e r i m  p e r i o d .  The c l a i m  f o r  $23114.36 i s  suppor ted  by 

documents from I s l a n d  Car R e n t a l s  L td .  ( E x h i b i t  1 2 )  and which sum 

I a l low.  

The p l a i n t i f f  i s  a l s o  e n t i t l e d  t o  r e c o v e r  t h e  sum 

of  US$23,974.98 r e p r e s e n t i n g  Cigma Hea l th  I n s u r a n c e  payout  and I 

US$150 co-payments f o r  h o s p i t a l i z a t i o n  i n  Jamaica  amounting t o  I 
US$150 t o t a l l i n g  US$24,124.98. 

Judgment i s  a s s e s s e d  a s  fo l l ows :  

S p e c i a l  damages: I n  t h e  sum of  J$654,864.36,  US$44,192.61 

Genera l  damages: 

For p a i n  & s u f f e r i n g  & l o s s  o f  a m e n i t i e s  $2.5M. 

F u t u r e  medica t ion  & h i p  s u r g e r y  J$450,000,  US$60,000. 

The p l a i n t i f f  hav ing  found t o  be c o n t r i b u t o r i l y  n e g l i g e n t  t o  t h e  

e x t e n t  o f  25% he i s  t h e r e f o r e  e n t i t l e d  t o  a  f i n a l  judgment o f  

75% o f  t h e  above. 



Claims of Indemnity 

The f i r s t  and second defendants  have claimed indemnity 

a g a i n s t  t h e  t h i r d  and f i f t h  defendants  on t h e  one p a r t  and a g a i n s t  

t h e -  s i x t h  defendant  on t h e  o t h e r  p a r t ,  a s  fol lows:-  

1. An indemnity a g a i n s t  t h e  p l a i n t i f f ' s  c l a im  o r  t o  

c o n t r i b u t i o n  t o  such e x t e n t -  a s  t h e  Court  s h a l l  

t h i n k  f i t  i n  r e s p e c t  of such c la im.  

Judgment f o r  any amoun t h a t  may be found due from t h e  

f i r s t  and second defendants  t o  t h e  p l a i n t i f f .  

Judgment f o r  any amount- of any c o s t s  t h a t  t h e  f i r s t  

and second defendants  may be adjudged t o  pay t h e  

p l a i n t i f f  and f o r  t h e  amount of t h e  f i r s t  and 

second de fendan t s '  own c o s t s  of  defending t h i s  

a c t i o n  and of t h e  proceedings  a g a i n s t  t h e  f i r s t  

and second defendants  h e r e i n .  

The s i x t h  defendant  has  claimed indemnity a g a i n s t  

t h e  f i r s t  and second defendants  on t h e  one p a r t  and t h e  t h i r d  

and f i f t h  defendants  on t h e  o t h e r  p a r t  in te rms  i d e n t i c a l  t o  

t hose  made by t h e  f i r s t  and second defendants .  

Having a l r e a d y  found t h a t  t h e  f i r s t  and t h i r d  

defendants  were no t  p e r s o n a l l y  l i a b l e ,  t h e  c l a ims  of indemnity 

w i l l  be cons idered  i n  r e s p e c t  of t h e  second, f i f t h  and s i x t h  

defendants .  

I f i n d  t h e  f i f t h  defendant  t o  be t h e  p r i n c i p a l  t o r t f e a s o r  

i n  t h i s  a c t i o n .  The second d e f e n d a n t ' s  r o l e  i s  i n  



\ i 
employing a n  independen t  c o n t r a c t o r ,  t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t ' s  

proved t o  b e  n e g l i g e n t  i n  c a r r y i n g  o u t  t h e i r  work. The s i x t h  

d e f e n d a n t ' s r o l e  i s  i n  n e g l i g e n t l y  s u p e r v i s i n g  t h e  j o b  f o r  which ~ 
t h e y  w e r e  p a i d  t o  do.  

I t  was h e l d  i n  t h e  M i r a f l o r e s  and t h e  Abadesa (1967) 1 
1 AER 672, t h a t  i n  a s s e s s i n g  d e g r e e s  o f  f a u l t ,  b l amewor th iness  1 
a s  w e l l  a s  c a u s a t i o n  must be  c o n s i d e r e d  a s  n e c e s s a r y  t o  weigh ~ 
t h e  f a u l t  o f  e a c h  n e g l i g e n t  p a r t y  a g a i n s t  e a c h  o f  t h e  o t h e r s  

s e p a r a t e l y  and n o t  c o n j u n c t i v e l y .  The p r o p o r t i o n s  o f  f a u l t  I 
. - - 

a s s e s s  t o  b e  1 0 %  i n  r e s p e c t  o f  t h e  second d e f e n d a n t  and 1 0 %  i n  

r e s p e c t  o f  t h e  s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t .  The second and s i x t h  d e f e n d a n t s  

a r e  e a c h  e n t i t l e d  t o  b e  i n d e m n i f i e d  by t h e  f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t  

t o  t h e  e x t e n t  o f  80% o f  t h e  judgment. The f i f t h  d e f e n d a n t ' s  ~ 
l i a b i l i t y  as  between a l l  t h r e e  d e i e n d a n t s  amounts ,  t o  80% o f  t h e  
judgment. 

I n  f i n e  damages a r e  a s s e s s e d  a s  f o l l o w s : -  

S p e c i a l  damages: In  t h e  sum o f  J$491,114.25,  ~ ~ $ 3 3 , 1 4 4 . 4 6  w i t h  

i n t e r e s t  a t  t h e  r a t e  o f  3% p e r  annum from t h e  1 4 . 1 . 9 5  t o  t h e  
. . 

G e n e r a l  damages: I n  t h e  sum o f  J$2,212,500.00 US$45,000 w i t h  

i n t e r e s t  on $1,875,000.00 a t  t h e  r a t e  o f  3% p e r  annum from t h e  

22.5.95 t o  t h e  8 t h  O c t o b e r ,  1999.  

C o s t s  t o  t h e  p l a i n t i f f  t o  be  a g r e e d  o r  t a x e d .  
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. t h e  i n s t a n t  c a s e ,  t h e  d i s t r i c t  c o u n c i l  a c t i n g  under  t h e  P u b l i c  

Hea l t h  A c t ,  1875, employed a  c o n t r a c t o r  t o  make up a  highway, 

which-was  used by t h e  p u b l i c  b u t  had n o t  become r e p a r i a b l e  by 

t h e  i n h a b i t a n t  a t  l a r g e .  I n  c a r r y i n g o u t  t h e  work t h e  c o n t r a c t o r  

n e g l i g e n t l y  l e f t  on  t h e  road  a  heap o f  s o i l ,  u n l i g h t e d  and 

u n p r o t e c t e d .  A pe r son  walking a long  t h e  road  a f t e r  d a r k  f e l l  

o v e r  t h e  heap and was i n j u r i e d .  I n  a n  a c t i o n  a g a i n s t  t h e  

C' . d i s t r i c t  c o u n c i l  a n d  t h e  c o n t r a c t o r  t o  r e c o v e r  damages f o r  t h e  

i n j u r i e s  s u s t a i n e d ,  it was h e l d  t h a t  a s  from t h e  n a t u r e  o f  t h e  work, 

danger  was l i k e l y  t o  a r i s e  t o  t h e  p u b l i c  u s i n g  t h e  r o a d ,  u n l e s s  

p r e c a u t i o n s  were t a k e n ,  t h e  neg l i gence  o f  t h e  c o n t r a c t o r  was n o t  

c a u s a l  o r  c o l l a t e r a l  t o  h i s  employement and t h e  d i s t r i c t  c o u n c i l  

i s  l i a b l e .  

I n  t h e  Cour t  of  Appeal,  Smith L J  ag r eed  w i t h  t h e  t r i a l  

r, judge Bruce J when he  s a y s .  

"The p r i n c i p l e  o f  t h e  d e c i s i o n ,  I 
t h i n k ,  i s  t h i s ,  t h a t  when a  pe r son  
employs a  c o n t r a c t o r  t o  do  work i n  
a  p l a c e  where t h e  p u b l i c  a r e  i n  a  
h a b i t  of  p a s s i n g ,  which work w i l l ,  
u n l e s s  p r e c a u t i o n s  a r e  t a k e n ,  and 
t h a t  i f  t h e  nece s sa ry  p r e c a u t i o n s  
a r e  n o t  t a k e n ,  he  canno t  e s cape  
l i a b i l i t y  by s eek ing  t o  throw 
t h e  blame on t h e  c o n t r a c t o r . "  

There p r i n c i p l e s  w e r e  f u r t h e r  r e i t e r a t e d  i n  t h e  c a s e  of  

Honeywil l  & S t e i n  Ltd. v Lachin Bros Ltd. (1933) AER 77 where t h e  

a c t i o n  was a g a i n s t  t h e  c o n t r a c t o r  t o  r e cove r  sums p a i d  t o  a  t h i r d  

p a r t y  i n  r e s p e c t  o f  p r o p e r t y  damage caused by t h e  c o n t r a c t o r s  



road authority and to such 
conditions as may be prescribed, 
open or break up any road, 
street or have for the purpose 
of laying down, extending, 
inspecting, altering, removing 
or repairing any water works or 
sewerage system. " 

The Act places the Commission under a duty to conduct 

its operations properly without endangering the public and cannot 

escape this duty by delegation to an independent contractor. 

I find that the sixth defendant is also liable in 

negligence and conclude that the second, fifth, and sixth defendants 
. . 

are all liable in negligence. The plaintiff succeeds in establishing 

negligence against them. 

Apportionment of damages 

When both parties are at fault, the plaintiff's damages 

are to be reduced having regard to the claimant's share in the 

responsibility for the damage. Share in the responsibility for 

the damage therefore means share of the blame causing the damage 

and the damages are to be apportioned on the basis of blameworthiness. 

In Davies v Swan Motor Co. Ltd. (1949) 2KB291, Denning LJ said:- 

"Whilst causation is the decisive 

factor in deter'xinin5 whether there 

should be a reduced amount payable 

to the plaintiff, nevertheless the 

amount of the reduction does not 

depend solely on the degree of the 

causation. The amount of the 




